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Glossary of Terms 

The following is a glossary of certain terms used in this Listing Statement.  Terms and 
abbreviations used in this Listing Statement and also appearing in the documents attached as 
schedules to the Listing Statement (including the financial statements) are defined separately 
and the terms and abbreviations defined below are not used therein, except where otherwise 
indicated.  Words below importing the singular, where the context requires, include the plural 
and vice versa, and words importing any gender include all genders. All dollar amounts herein 
are in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated. 

“Arrangement Agreement” means the arrangement agreement including the Arrangement 
dated April 4, 2014 among Pubco, Highmark International Marketing and Highmark Marketing. 

“Arrangement” means the statutory plan of arrangement attached to the Arrangement 
Agreement. 

“Auditors” means Charlton & Company, Chartered Accountants. 

“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) including the regulations 
thereunder, as amended. 

“Board” means the board of directors of Highmark Marketing. 

“CEO” means an individual who acted as chief executive officer of the Company, or acted in a 
similar capacity, for any part of the most recently completed financial year. 

“CFO” means an individual who acted as chief financial officer of the Company, or acted in a 
similar capacity, for any part of the most recently completed financial year. 

“Common Shares” means the common shares without par value of Highmark Marketing. 
 
“Company” means Highmark Marketing. 
 
“Effective Date” means the date the Arrangement became effective, being May 7, 2014. 
 
“Exchange” means the Canadian Securities Exchange. 
 
“Final Order” means the final order of the Court granted on April 17, 2014 approving the 
Arrangement; 

“Highmark Marketing”, “the Company”, “the Issuer”, “Subco-RI”, “we”, “us” and “our” means 
Highmark Marketing Inc. (formerly known as Highmark Acquisitions Ltd.) and includes its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Highmark International Marketing Inc. 

“Highmark International Marketing” and “Buyco” means Highmark International Marketing 
Inc. (formerly known as Highmark Marketing Corp.) a private British Columbia company and the 
wholly owned subsidiary of Highmark Marketing. 

“Listing Date” means the date on which the common shares of the Company are listed for 
trading on the Exchange. 
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“Listing Statement” means this Exchange Form 2A Listing Statement of Highmark Marketing. 

“Plan of Arrangement” means the Arrangement. 

“Products” means the Vitapect™ product line, in addition to any further potential acquisitions of 
nutraceutical products. 

“Pubco” means Gorilla Minerals Corp., a British Columbia company and a reporting issuer in 
Alberta and British Columbia. 

“Related Person” means an “Insider”, which has the meaning set forth in the Securities Act 
(British Columbia) being:  

(a) a director or senior officer of the company that is an insider or subsidiary of the 
issuer;  

(b) a director or senior officer of the issuer; 

(c) a person that that beneficially owns or controls, directly or indirectly, voting share 
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting shares 
of the issuer; or  

(d) the issuer itself if it holds any of its own securities. 
 

“RMDC” means RMDC Holdings Corp., a private British Columbia company of which our 
director, David Taylor, is a principal shareholder. 

“SEO” means Search Engine Optimization. 

“USP” means Unique Selling Point.
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Forward-Looking Statements 

The information provided in this Listing Statement, including information incorporated by 
reference, may contain “forward-looking statements”. In addition, we may make or approve 
certain statements in future filings with Canadian securities regulatory authorities, in press 
releases, or in oral or written presentations that are not statements of historical fact and may 
also constitute forward-looking statements. All statements, other than statements of historical 
fact, made by us that address activities, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will 
or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, 
statements preceded by, followed by or that include words such as “may”, “will”, “would”, 
“could”, “should”, “believes”, “estimates”, “projects”, “potential”, “expects”, “plans”, “intends”, 
“anticipates”, “targeted”, “continues”, “forecasts”, “designed”, “goal”, or the negative of those 
words or other similar or comparable words.  

Forward-looking statements may relate to future financial conditions, results of operations, 
plans, objectives, performance or business developments. These statements speak only as at 
the date they are made and are based on information currently available and on our then 
current expectations and assumptions concerning future events, which are subject to a number 
of known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, 
performance or achievements to be materially different from that which was expressed or 
implied by such forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, risks and uncertainties 
related to:  

• the speculative and competitive nature of the nutraceutical market;  

• the availability of financing opportunities, risks associated with economic conditions, 
dependence on management and conflicts of interest; and 

• other risks described in this Listing Statement and described from  time to time in 
documents filed by the Issuer with Canadian securities regulatory authorities  

Consequently, all forward-looking statements made in this Listing Statement and our other 
documents are qualified by such cautionary statements and there can be no assurance that the 
anticipated results or developments will actually be realized or, even if realized, that they will 
have the expected consequences or effects. The cautionary statements contained or referred to 
in this section should be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-
looking statements that we and/or persons acting on our behalf may issue. We undertake no 
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise, other than as required under securities legislation. See 
“Part 17 – Risk Factors”.  

Market and Industry Data 

This Listing Statement includes market and industry data that has been obtained from third 
party sources, including industry publications. We believe that its industry data is accurate and 
that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, but there is no assurance as to the accuracy 
or completeness of this date. Third party sources generally state that the information contained 
therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but there is no assurance as to 
the accuracy or completeness of included information. Although the data is believed to be 
reliable, we have not independently verified any of the data from third party sources referred to 
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in this Listing Statement or ascertained the underlying economic assumptions relied upon by 
such sources.  

2. Corporate Structure 

We were incorporated pursuant to the BCBCA under the name “Highmark Marketing Inc.” 
(formerly known as “Highmark Acquisitions Ltd.”) on April 2, 2014, under incorporation number 
BC0998408.  Our head office is located at Suite 800, 1199 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, 
British Columbia V6E 3T5, and our registered and records office is located at Suite 1820 - 925 
West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3L2. 

Highmark International Marketing was incorporated pursuant to the BCBCA on March 19, 2014 
under incorporation number BC0997011. 

On May 8, 2014, Highmark International Marketing became our wholly owned subsidiary 
pursuant to the Arrangement. We were incorporated pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement, 
as a wholly owned subsidiary of a reporting issuer, Pubco. Upon completion of the 
Arrangement, the shareholders of Highmark International Marketing became the shareholders 
of Highmark Marketing through a reverse merger, and Highmark International Marketing 
became our wholly owned subsidiary. 

THE ARRANGEMENT 

On April 4, 2014, we entered into an Arrangement Agreement with Pubco and Highmark 
International Marketing. On April 17, 2014, the Court granted the Final Order approving the 
Arrangement in accordance with Part 9 of the BCBCA.  Pursuant to the terms of the Plan of 
Arrangement, the following steps were completed: 
 

a) Highmark International Marketing acquired all the 10,000 issued and outstanding 
Highmark Marketing common shares from Pubco (the “Purchase Shares”) for $10,000; 

b) Highmark International Marketing and Highmark Marketing exchanged securities on 1:1 
basis, such that 10,425,000 common shares of Highmark International Marketing were 
exchanged by their holders for 10,425,000 common shares of Highmark Marketing; 

c) Pubco and Highmark Marketing exchanged securities as follows: Pubco issued 4 
common shares to Highmark Marketing and Highmark Marketing issued 4,000  common 
shares to Pubco (collectively, the “Exchange Shares”); and 

d) the Purchase Shares and the Exchange Shares were then cancelled. 

On closing of the Arrangement, Highmark Marketing became a reporting issuer in Alberta and 
British Columbia, and Highmark International Marketing became the wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Highmark Marketing. 
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The following diagram summarizes the structure of the entities prior to and after completion of 
the Arrangement: 
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Fundamental Change 

We are not requalifying for a listing following a fundamental change or proposing an acquisition, 
amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement.  

Non-corporate Issuers and Issuers incorporated outside of Canada 

We, and our wholly owned subsidiary, were incorporated in a Canadian jurisdiction. 

3. General Development of the Business  

We are a nutraceutical company and our current focus is upon the distribution and marketing of 
Vitapect™, a vitamin supplement.   

3.2 Significant Acquisitions and Dispositions 

On April 29, 2014, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Highmark International Marketing Inc., entered 
into an Asset Purchase Agreement with RMDC Holdings Corp. (“RMDC”).  

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement with RMDC, we acquired the following: 
(1) a license agreement to distribute Vitapect™ products in North America and beyond; 
(2) ownership of domain names:www.vitapect.ca, www.vitapect.org and www.vitapect.co.uk;  
(3) online traffic from www.vitapect.com;  
(4) a corporate website; 
(5) prepaid expenses; and 
(6) Vitapect™ inventory. 

Our director, David Taylor, is a principal shareholder of RMDC. On April 21, 2014, we paid 
$3,316.12 to David Taylor as a deposit, the balance of the purchase price ($6,683.88) was paid 
to David Taylor on May 1, 2014. These payments constitute transactions with a related party. 

3.3 Material Trends, Commitments, Events and Uncertainties 

N/A 
 

4. Narrative Description of the Business  

Business Objectives 

Our primary business objectives over the next 12 months are to complete the following:   

 Complete a further private placement of securities of $500,000 after our Common Shares 
have been listed on the Exchange; 

 Establish a special committee to evaluate and search for new acquisitions, and/or 
product lines in order to expand our product offerings of vitamins, dietary supplements 
and other nutraceuticals. 
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Business Plan  
We intend to engage in the marketing, distribution and sale of nutritional products in North 
America and beyond. Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement with RMDC, we acquired the 
following: 

(1) a license agreement to distribute Vitapect™ products in North America and beyond; 
(2) ownership of domain names:www.vitapect.ca, www.vitapect.org and www.vitapect.co.uk;  
(3) online traffic from www.vitapect.com;  
(4) a corporate website; 
(5) prepaid expenses; and 
(6) Vitapect™ inventory. 

 

The Vitapect™ inventory, is stored in warehouses.  Approximately 50% of the product is stored 
at the Vitapect™ headquarters and 50% of the product is stored at Wakestone (a logistics 
company) both in Prague, Czech Republic. We have an agreement with Vitapect™’s 
manufacturer and brand owner whereby the product is shipped to customers from a distribution 
center in Prague, Czech Republic. Storage fees have also been prepaid for 12 months. 

We have the exclusive right to distribute the Vitapect™ product line in California State and 
throughout the North American market on a non-exclusive basis.  Furthermore, as long as we 
maintain an order amount of 5,000 Euros for each six month period, we will have a right of first 
refusal for an exclusive license of an additional two market jurisdictions.  We are able to select 
from the following States and Provinces: Oregon, Washington, Idaho and British Columbia.  The 
Vitapect™ product line, in addition to any further potential acquisitions of nutraceutical products, 
will constitute our intended products (the “Products”). 

A 2012 research report by Global Industry Analysts defined the nutraceuticals market as 
"dietary supplements (vitamins, minerals, herbals, non-herbals, & others), and functional foods 
& beverages”1. 

The Vitapect™ product line is a soluble apple product containing essential vitamins and 
minerals formulated for, and marketed as having the potential to combat some forms of 
radiation within the human body. 

We intend to expand our Products while building a sales and distribution platform specifically 
designed for the needs of the industry. 

The strategy for growth will be to leverage the sales and distribution platform by acquiring 
complementary products that fit our parameters for high growth within the nutraceutical industry.  
We may also consider acquisitions in related industries, such as the pharmaceutical industry. 

Industry Overview and Trends 
The nutraceutical market is growing immensely, bolstered by two primary demographic factors: 
(a) a growing population and (b) an ageing population.  Furthermore, the rising prevalence of 

1 Market Research Report: Nutraceuticals, Staff, Global Industry Analysts, Inc. July 1, 2012  
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diseases, including cardiovascular and other acute diseases, are also boosting the growth in the 
market.2 

The nutraceutical industry is a dynamic, developing marketplace where specific cultural 
requirements vary from marketplace to marketplace. There are varying product definitions and 
an absence of unified regulatory policies. However, what remains constant is the continued 
global demand for nutraceutical products.  Consumers are taking a greater interest in their 
personal health, particularly as life expectancy increases and health costs rise. 

In 2013 the research firm RNCOS projected that the US nutraceutical market will grow at a 
Compound Annual Growth Rate of around 6% during the forecast period 2013-20173. 
Furthermore, a 2012 research report by Global Industry Analysts projected that the worldwide 
nutraceuticals market would reach US$250 billion by 20184. 

The emergence of social media has also provided consumers with easy access discover trends 
and product developments. Major online retailers have also entered the vitamins and dietary 
supplements market. The internet provides consumers with easy access to a global 
marketplace of products.  These products can then be easily researched, purchased online and 
shipped directly to the consumer. 

About Vitapect™ 

 

 

 

Vitapect™ is based on apple pectin and is believed to be efficient at removing heavy metals 
from the body.  Vitapect™ was originally researched and developed in Europe with funding from 
the European Union after the Chernobyl incident. It has been extensively studied on over 
160,000 Europeans. The European Commission’s Program of support of small Transboundary 
cooperation projects (“TACIS”) provided funding for the general development of Vitapect™ and 
related research. From 1996 to 2007 a total of more than 160,000 Belarussian children received 
pectin food additives during 18 to 25 days of treatment (5g twice a day). As a result, levels of 
Cs-137 in children's organs decreased after each course of pectin additives by an average of 30 
to 40%.5  In peer review research reported in the respected Swiss Medical Weekly, Vitapect™ 

2 Leveraging growth in the emerging functional foods industry, Price Waterhouse Coopers, 2009 
http://www.pwc.com/us/en/transaction-services/publications/assets/functional-foods.pdf 
3 US Nutraceuticals Market Forecast to 2017, PR Newswire, June 19, 2013 (http://www.prnewswire.com/news-
releases/us-nutraceuticals-market-forecast-to-2017-212161321.html) 
4 Global Health Movement Drives Market for Nutraceuticals to $250 bn by 2018; Probiotics to Touch $39.6 bn and 
Heart Health Ingredients Near $15.2 bn, PRNewswire, November 19, 2012 (http://www.prnewswire.com/news-
releases/global-health-movement-drives-market-for-nutraceuticals-to-250-bn-by-2018-probiotics-to-touch-396-bn-
and-heart-health-ingredients-near-152-bn-180021771.html) 
5 Chernobyl: Consequences of the Catastrophe for People and the Environment, A. V. Yablokov, V.B Nesterenko, 
V.B. Nesterenko, Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences, Volume 1181 
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has been shown to remove over 60% of radioactive Cesium (Cs134 & Cs 137) from the human 
body6.  These articles were written by scientists from the Institute of Radiation Safety “Belgrad” 
in Minsk, Belarus. We believe that the peer review reports provide substantial evidence for our 
assertions and beliefs in regard to the use of Vitapect™.  Notable conclusions in these reports 
include the following: 

- “The average reduction of the 137Cs [cesium-137] levels in children receiving oral pectin 
powder was 62.6%, the reduction with “clean” food and placebo was 13.9%, the difference 
being statistically significant…” 

- “Apple pectin significantly decreased 137Cs loads in these groups (39% and 28%, 
respectively). ECG alterations improved, while cardiovascular symptoms and hypertension did 
not change in any group.”  

- “In a double-blind, placebo-controlled trial, oral apple pectin powder, given for 23 days to 
children receiving radioactively clean food, lowered the Cs burden by some 60%, while the 
“clean” diet alone lowered the burden by only 14%…”    

We believe the authors of the reports paid to have the report on their methods, results and 
conclusions reviewed by the scientific panel at Swiss Medical Weekly and published on the 
website. We understand that Swiss Medical Weekly is not only a publication service but also 
has a panel of experts and scientists review the reports before they are posted on the website. 

Ingredients 

Apple powder, Vitamin B2 (riboflavin), Vitamin B6 (pyridoxol hydrochloride), Vitamin B12 
(Cyanocobalamin), Vitamin C (ascorbic acid), Vitamin E (tocopherol acetate), beta-carotene, 
folic acid, minerals: K, Zn, Se, lactose (milk sugar), citric acid, E1521 (polyethylene glycol), 
magnesium stearate, E951 (aspartame, contains phenylalanine) 

Sales and Marketing 
 
Our primary focus is on distributing and marketing products via our online store.  According to 
the new Cybercitizen Health® U.S. 2012 study from healthcare market research and advisory 
firm Manhattan Research, 54 percent of online consumers say online information or tools have 
influenced their choice of healthcare providers, treatments, and services. “Consumers are 
relying on new digital ecosystems to shape a multitude of daily decisions, from retail products to 
travel, and we're starting to see this trickle down to healthcare,” said Monique Levy, Vice 
President of Research at Manhattan Research.”7 
 

6Reducing the 137Cs-load in the organism of “Chernobyl” children with apple-pectin, V. B. Nesterenko, A. V. 
Nesterenko, V. I. Babenko, T. V. Yerkovich, I. V. Babenko, SWISS MED WKLY 2004;134:24–27 
(http://www.smw.ch/docs/pdf200x/2004/01/2004-01-10223.pdf) and Relationship between Caesium (137Cs) load, 
cardiovascular symptoms, and source of food in “Chernobyl” children – preliminary  
observations after intake of oral apple pectin, G. S. Bandazhevskaya, V. B. Nesterenko, V. I. Babenko, I. V. Babenko, 
T. V. Yerkovich, Y. I. Bandazhevsky, SWISS MED WKLY 2004;134:725–729 
(http://www.smw.ch/docs/smw/archiv/pdf200x/2004/49/smw-10219.pdf)  
7 New Study Shows Internet Directing Consumers’ Choice of Health Services and Products, October 18, 2012 - See 
more at: http://manhattanresearch.com/News-and-Events/Press-Releases/consumers-internet-health-
services#sthash.92c6tBzX.dpuf  
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Our Mission 

Our mission is to initially provide nutraceuticals online in Canada and the USA.  If the market 
conditions are appropriate, we then hope to market and distribute our Products overseas. In 
time, we hope to become a market leader. Our Marketing Consultant shall be responsible for 
executing our plans, detailed below, which are designed to achieve our objectives. 

Situation Analysis 

We recognize that online marketing activities are critical to the success and profitability of the 
business. In 2012, Manhattan Research reported that 73 percent of U.S. adults (ages 18 and 
older) used online health information and tools8.  We believe these resources are shaping 
consumers’ choices of health products and services.  

Target Market 

People are becoming more health conscious, particularly as life expectancies increase along 
with the cost of healthcare.  In Canada, by 2013, total health care spending is projected to 
exceed CDN$211 billion, or CDN$5,988 per person9. It is also expected to consume 11.2% of 
Canada’s gross domestic product. In the USA, health care spending is expected to account for 
nearly 20% of gross domestic product by 2021.10  People are looking to avoid invasive surgery 
and powerful pharmaceuticals; instead people are taking an active role in the maintenance of 
their health and practicing preventive medicine. Our target market covers a broad demographic, 
from the over 50s who are looking for alternative ways to promote longevity, to those in their 20s 
who appreciate the need to maintain a healthy lifestyle.   

Results of our promotional trial 

Two of our directors, in conjunction with RMDC, conducted a 1 month limited promotion.  The 
promotion primarily involved bloggers working 2-4 hours a week, blogging on news and 
alternate media sites, creating articles for the company’s Shopify blog (which is part of the 
online store) and also using social media such as Twitter and Facebook. Over 100 Twitter 
followers were generated by using this organic marketing approach. This trial was conducted in 
January 2014 and generated $1,147 in sales from 1,483 unique visitors to the site and 8 buyers. 
Sales came in at 77 cents per unique visitor. Net Income was 50 cents per unique visitor. 

 

 

 

8Ibid 
9 Canadian Institute for Health Information, (http://www.cihi.ca/CIHI-ext-
portal/internet/EN/SubTheme/spending+and+health+workforce/spending/cihi015954) 
10 The Facts About Rising Health Care Costs, Aetna.com, (http://www.aetna.com/health-reform-connection/aetnas-
vision/facts-about-costs.html) 
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The 1 month financials resulting from this campaign, which were generated for RMDC, and 
hence are not recorded in our financial statements, are as follows: 

 TOTAL Tablets Powder Shipping 

Gross Revenue $1,147 $624 $414 $109 

COGS $378    

Shopify Store $30    

Logistics, Shipping $163.38    

Pre-Tax Net 
Income 

$575.62    

Net Income % 50.2%    

 

Based on the test results, we will undertake an aggressive online marketing campaign designed 
to increasing the number of visitors which our website receives.  By increasing the number of 
visitors, we hope to increase revenue.  During this process, we aim to cultivate the relationships, 
and partnerships within the online community, which are needed to establish our own network.  
Timely payments to media vendors and prompt product delivery may also improve our ratings 
and in turn increase the number of sales. 

Positioning 

We will position ourselves as an online retailer of high-quality, reasonably-priced nutraceuticals.   

Our website will be easy to navigate and our customer service will be exceptional.  If a customer 
contacts us for further information, we will ensure they have a positive experience with our 
representative.  Superior customer service will be a powerful asset. 

In order to deliver competitively-priced products to increasingly cost-conscious consumers, we 
intend to focus on the efficiency of internet marketing to capture customer sales.  

Marketing Objectives 

To summarise, our broad marketing objectives are as follows: 

• Increase the number of repeat purchases by consumers 
• Decrease the costs associated with acquiring new consumers 
• Increase the percentage of visitors who purchase our Products 
• Maintain positive, steady growth each month 
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Marketing Campaign 

We believe that the success of our business is dependent upon an aggressive online marketing 
campaign.  We appreciate that it is not enough for us to be passive and hope that if we have a 
website, online sales will follow.  

We will write about our Products on blogs and distribute content on social media.  We will also 
distribute coupons to encourage first-time purchases. We will then ensure that when a potential 
consumer enters information that is relevant to our Products, through Search Engine 
Optimization, our website appears near the top of the list of search results. Once a customer 
has purchased our Products, we need to retarget them, as they are a potentially lucrative 
resource. 

(i) Blogging and Online Content Creation 

Business blogging allows us to address the concerns of our customers. Our blogs will focus on 
the issues that will resonate with our customers, such as advances in healthcare and diet 
trends. Customer-centric content will increase interest in our Products. In the way that direct 
marketers distinguish between customers based upon key characteristics, online marketers who 
use blogs can create buyer personas to create more relevant experiences for their readers. Our 
objective will be to create content relating to health, anti-ageing, anti-cancer, natural products 
and nutraceuticals through a variety of personas. These personas will have characteristics that 
match our target audience, e.g. health-conscious individuals. 

Information from personas drives keyword research & optimization, content plan and promotion. 
Creating these personas is a priority.  

We will also collect and analyze web data through customer surveys, analytics, social 
monitoring and other tools to form a profile. That profile represents topics, behaviors and 
preferences that can translate into search keywords, social topics, social channels, editorial 
calendar and promotion plans, which will be used for Search Engine Optimization. 

We will develop a Unique Selling Point (USP) for content. We identify the key benefits (health, 
anti-aging, anti-disease) of our blog’s content and we will address the concerns of readers. As 
we communicate our USP, we will be specific, concise and show proof in the form of 
independent research on our Products.  

The personas and our USP are two ways in which we will generate interest in our Products. In 
order to activate our blog content for effective discovery via search and social media channels, 
it’s essential to create a search phrase keyword glossary for Search Engine Optimization 
purposes and a social media topic glossary for Social Media Optimization. 

#108948-4 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

Page 14 



 

(ii) Distribution of Online Content Through Social Media  
 

Our recent trial, conducted by RMDC and two of our directors, demonstrated how social media 
can be a cost effective way to increase sales.  We will aggressively use social media in order to 
increase consumer awareness of our Products and to hopefully increase sales.   

Social media and consistent content creation will make our target audience aware of our 
Products. It also provides us with an opportunity to develop an online personality and voice in a 
way in which is engaging to our customers. Social media can also be a great way of discovering 
topics that our customers and prospective customers want to hear about. 
 
SEO also works alongside social media and it must be strategically aligned and integrated. As 
search engines continue to refine and modify their algorithms, traditional techniques such as 
back-linking and keyword stuffing are becoming much less effective.  
 
We have already connected with customers via Facebook and Twitter. There are also 
opportunities on alternative news sites that deal with health-related topics. The more media 
channels we use to market our Products, the greater the possibility that our brand will be 
discovered.  
 

(i) Coupon-Driven Sales 
 
We plan to distribute coupons to our target audience in order to increase sales. 

 
(a) Partnering Brands with Online Retailers: According to an eMarketer.com, 

more than 100 million U.S. adults would redeem a digital coupon in 2014, and 
nearly half of women ages 35 to 54 said they would like to receive mobile 
coupons via text11. If we deliver the appropriate incentives to our target 
audience, we hope to increase sales.  
 

(b) Based on research by a company called Triad, partnering our brands with 
online retailers should increase profitability. Triad found that partnering with 
an online retailer to advertise where a consumer can purchase a product is 
more effective than simply advertising a product. This might be a partnership 
we have to build with an online retailer over time, but the difference between 
co-branded and generic mobile media is staggering.  Triad’s mobile co-
branded programs saw up to 300% higher click-through rates than other 
mobile campaigns.12   
 

(c) Convincing Shoppers to Share to Spread the Wealth: this program 
entices users to engage and save more by sharing content and offers with 
friends. For example, if a user shares a $0.50 coupon on one of her social 
media outlets, she earns a $1-off coupon. By sharing, the shopper gets a 

11Mobile Spurs Digital Coupon User Growth, January 31, 2013 (http://www.emarketer.com/Article/Mobile-Spurs-
Digital-Coupon-User-Growth/1009639) 
12 Tips for Honing Your Digital Coupon Strategy, Tom Boisvert, October 22, 2013 
(http://www.pathtopurchase.com/digital-coupon-strategy-tips/) 
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better deal. This is also a great tool for retailers. Every time a customer 
shares a coupon, it drives additional traffic to the retail site.  This is beneficial 
to both advertisers and retailers. 
 

(d) Leverage the Power of Word of Mouth: Traditional coupons are found in 
the pages of daily newspapers and store handouts but as online sales 
increase, the way in which customers are targeted needs to change. 
Customers may turn to online content for further information to answer all of 
their questions and concerns. Social networks and blogs create the perfect 
opportunity to partner content and brands in a less invasive manner for 
consumers. Consumers are able to discover brands in an entirely different 
way to the traditional mode of advertising. For us and our advertisers, this is a 
great way to create content, foster engagement and increase interest in our 
Products.  
 

Coupons are often thought of as a way of discounting products and reducing profit margins. 
However, a well-planned strategy for digital and mobile coupons can help us to distinguish 
ourselves from our competitors. 

 
(ii) Search Engine Optimization (SEO) 
 

When people (or search engines) visit our websites, the primary focus of our Products will be 
clear.  With a number of different nutraceutical companies in the North American market, it’s 
essential for our brand to stand out.  Being able to articulate our USP helps distinguish the value 
of our web assets for customers and search engines. A blog that has a clear focus is reflected 
both in popularity and search visibility. 
 
We hope to increase traffic to our site by using SEO Keywords. We will use keyword research 
tools to discover words and phrases that are searched frequently and that are also relevant to 
the content published on our blog. 
 
Keywords: Keyword research is the first step to our successful SEO strategy. Once we 
discover which words are frequently used when searching for similar products, we can then use 
these words to drive traffic to our Products. We will brainstorm potential keywords, and then 
analyse the level of competition. If we notice that some keywords are too competitive, we will 
select with long-tail keywords (between two and five words) which will be easier for us to rank. 
The longer the keyword, the less competition we will have for that phrase in the engines13. 

 
Meta tags: Meta tags still play a vital role in SEO. If customers type any keyword into a search 
engine, they can see how those keywords are reflected in the content and in the title page of 
different websites. The search engine then ranks these web links by relevance, focusing on the 
number of keywords on the page and in the title. 

 

13 What Should You Know About Keywords- The Long and Short of It, Barney Garcia, July 12, 2013 
(http://www.verticalresponse.com/blog/long-tail-vs-short-tail-keywords/)  
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Content: Creating quality content is the best way to create positive user experiences. It will also 
help us to educate our consumers.  If we become an authority in our market, we hope that in 
return, our sales will increase. 

 
Backlinks: The objective is to have the highest number of quality links pointing back to our 
website. We intend to build backlinks by submitting monthly or bi-monthly press releases on 
exciting companies, and by contacting popular blogs in our niche market to see how we can 
work together to get a backlink from their website. When people talk about our Products, they 
will see a link back to our website. We will also create graphics or newsworthy content that will 
encourage bloggers and news websites produce hyperlinks to our website. 

 
Social media: We believe e-commerce stores must establish a strong social media presence 
on sites like Facebook, Twitter, etc. These social media sites then send search engines signals 
of influence and authority. 

 
Product images: When consumers search for products in the search engines, they will see 
web links and image results.  We therefore will ensure that our website contains quality images 
of our Products. These file names must also contain relevant keywords so these images will 
rank well in search engines. We hope to drive a lot of traffic to our site as potential customers 
will click on that image to find our store. 

 
(iii) Mobile Sales Strategy 
 

We intend to enhance our current online sales storefronts with mobile storefronts. 
 

Mobile-Enabled Online Presence: Our website will be optimized for mobile devices and 
tablets, large and small. With our Marketing Consultant, we will run tests to confirm that all of 
our mobile designs work across all platforms.  
 
Mobile Coupons: Coupons are widely used across North America.  The San Antonio Business 
Journal reported in 2013 that 90% of shoppers surveyed are coupon users.  Furthermore, online 
coupon usage has increased dramatically.  29% of shoppers prefer to use online coupons which 
reflect a 16% increase from 201014. We will therefore distribute mobile coupons that can be 
redeemed on our online store. 
 

(iv) Strategies for Retargeting Consumers 
 
Site Retargeting  
 
Site retargeting targets people who have visited our website (or affiliated sites) and have shown 
interest in us. These people are identified, their details are stored in cookies and, as they 
continue to surf the web, they will be served our targeted display ads.  
 

14 Print coupons still rule, but online and mobile coupons are catching up, Tricia Lynn Silva, September 5, 2013, 
San Antonio Business Journal 
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Site retargeting is effective because it focuses advertising on people who are already familiar 
with our brand and who have demonstrated that interest by visiting our company site.  We plan 
to use site retargeting to increase repeat purchases and make sure that our brand remains fresh 
in our customers’ minds. 

 
Search Retargeting 
 
Search retargeting works by directly addressing people who have already expressed an interest 
in our Products. Search retargeting uses search profiles from major search engines to pinpoint 
potential customers who have never been to our site, but who have shown an interest in similar 
products.  By targeting customers who are interested in other companies that sell products 
similar to our own, we hope to be able to increase sales as those customers visit our website 
and find different products at a competitive price. 

 
Display Advertising  
 
We have identified prospective partners with display media that we hope will provide us with the 
leverage to access platforms with key demographics. We hope these prospective partners will 
be able to place us in high traffic sites on major networks. We will use these avenues to drive 
traffic and create a brand that will help in all areas of digital media. Traffic scopes will lead into 
retargeting and this will also help with our SEO campaigns based on familiar characteristics for 
our Products. This will be a major focus when aiming to drive the right traffic to both the 
information sites and the main portal for conversions.  
 
Content Advertising 
 
Content advertising allows consumers to discover expert written content about a company, 
product or industry.  Content advertising then amplifies that content to the target audience, 
wherever they are on the web. This form of advertising continues to inform and educating target 
audiences.  We plan to use content advertising to increase interest in our brand and we will then 
calculate the effect on sales.  

Financial Model of Vitapect™ 
 
The primary source of revenue in the immediate near term shall be the sales of product through 
the Vitapect™ online store, hosted with Shopify. 
 
The price point 
and cost of the 
product is 
detailed below: 

Vitapect™ 
Tablets (1) 

Vitapect™ Powder 
(1) 

Retail Price US$39 US$69 

Cost  US$14   

Cost   US$29  

#108948-4 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

Page 18 



 

 

 

(1) All figures are approximate and are based upon currency exchange figures at the date of this Listing Statement 

Growth Strategies 
As an upstart nutraceutical marketer based in Canada, we are well-positioned to capitalize on 
future industry growth in North America, and internationally.  We are dedicated to providing 
healthy and highly-nutritional products to consumers.  In order to make the most of industry 
opportunities and our competitive strengths, we plan to do the following: 
 

(i) Focus on brand development  
With intense price competition among many similar or identical products in the industry, 
building brand awareness is the primary means to generate and sustain profitable 
growth in the future.  In the future, we intend to market our Products through an 
integrated marketing program that includes, advertising in relevant media outlets; 
attending trade shows; direct marketing to Physicians (Naturopathic, Homeopathic, MDs, 
Specialists); marketing to traditional brick and mortar retailers; and offering seminars and 
lectures to local communities regarding our Products and their health benefits. 
 

(ii) Introduce new products  
Our Product portfolio will adapt to changing market conditions and will reflect new trends 
in consumer preferences.  Our market presence will increase by introducing additional 
competitive nutraceutical products to our Products. 
   

(iii) Further expand our distribution network to increase the prevalence of our 
products nationwide  
Initial sales will depend heavily on a strategy of online sales direct to consumers. In the 
future, the intention is to augment this strategy, initially by selling through third party 
websites e.g. online retailers, Bloggers, MSM and Alternative News.  In the future, we 
expect to be able to sell our line of products through brick and mortar retailers, such as 
vitamin retailers and drug stores.  We also intend to develop a network of distributors for 
our Products.   

 

Acquisitions 

The dietary supplement and nutraceutical industry is rapidly growing15. The global nutraceutical 
industry is highly fragmented16.  As life expectancy increases, people are looking for new and 
novel solutions to cope with ageing and health related issues17. We believe there are many 

15 Supplement Sales Fuel Global Nutraceuticals Market, Natural Products Insider, March 20, 2012 
(http://www.naturalproductsinsider.com/news/2012/03/supplement-sales-fuel-global-nutraceuticals-marke.aspx) 
16Food and Beverage Information Project 2011, Depth Sector Stream – Nutraceuticals and Foods For Health 
(http://www.med.govt.nz/sectors-industries/food-beverage/pdf-docs-library/information-project/nutraceuticals-
2011.pdf) 
17 By 2031, average life expectancy in Canada is projected to have risen to 81.9 for males and 86.0 for females, 
Statistics Canada. Canadian Demographics at a Glance. Catalogue 91-003 Ottawa: 2008. 

Gross Margin $ US$25 US$40 

Gross Margin % 64% 58% 
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small companies with competitive products but who have inadequate distribution and/or 
financing. Such companies may also have products in the pipeline which they intend to bring to 
market.  With our financing and marketing capabilities, we should be able to bring these 
products to market.  We hope to be in a position to acquire a number of these companies and/or 
their products over the next year. 

The experience of management will enable us to evaluate on case-by-case basis potential 
acquisitions or additions to add to our Products. The primary focus with respect to acquisitions 
will be on products for which there are favourable regulatory trends, a potential for high growth 
and an increase in consumer awareness.  
 
Summary 
 
We intend to become a market leader in the nutraceutical market by leveraging our 
management’s experience in a fragmented high growth industry.  
   

Total Funds Available, Breakdown of Funds and Principal Purposes for Which Funds Will be Used 

Our current working capital is approximately $325,000 and we plan to raise an additional 
$500,000 in financing after our Common Shares have been listed for trading on the Exchange. 
However, we do not yet have a commitment from anyone to provide the additional financial that 
we plan to raise, nor can there be any assurance that we will be able to raise such additional 
financing at all, or on terms that are satisfactory to our management. 

If we are unable to raise the additional $500,000, we plan to allocate our total funds as described 
in the following table: 

Available Funds  ($) 

Working capital (deficiency) at April 30, 2014 (the most 
recent month end prior to the date of this Listing Statement  

 325,000 

Principal Purposes   

Consulting and Professional Fees  100,000 

Salaries  60,000 

General and Administrative Expenses:   

 Office Lease  10,000 

 Telephone and Mobile Devices  0 

 Computer Equipment  0 

 Office Supplies  500 

 Incidentals and Miscellaneous Expenses  500 

CSE Listing Fees  10,000 
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Miscellaneous  4,000 

Unallocated Working Capital  140,000 

Total  325,000 

 

If we are successful in raising the additional $500,000, we plan to allocate the funds as follows: 

Available Funds  ($) 

Anticipated Working Capital   825,000 

Principal Purposes   

Consulting and Professional Fees  100,000 

Salaries  60,000 

General and Administrative Expenses:   

 Office Lease  10,000 

 Telephone and Mobile Devices  0 

 Computer Equipment  0 

 Office Supplies  500 

 Incidentals and Miscellaneous Expenses  500 

CSE Listing Fees  10,000 

Miscellaneous  4,000 

Unallocated Working Capital  640,000 

Total  825,000 

Additional Capital 
 
We recognizes that we need to raise more capital, but we want to ensure we do so in stages so 
as to minimize dilution to the value of the shares held by our existing shareholders.  Our goal is for 
each private placement financing to take place at a higher price per share than the one preceding. 
 
Even though we plan to raise capital through equity or debt financing, we believe that the latter 
may not be a viable alternative for funding our operations as they do not have sufficient assets 
to secure any such debt financing. We anticipate that any additional funding will be in the form 
of equity financing from the sale of our Common Shares. However, we do not have any 
financing arranged and cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to raise sufficient 
funds from the sale of common shares to fund operations or planned business development 
activities. In the absence of such financing, we will not be able to acquire further nutraceutical 
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product interests.  Even if we are successful in obtaining equity financing to expand its 
operations and to fund its business development activities, there is no assurance that we will 
obtain the funding necessary to acquire any additional further nutraceutical product interests.  If 
we do not continue to obtain additional financing, we may be forced to abandon our business 
plan or nutraceutical product interests.  
 
Modifications to our plans will be based on many factors, including the results of our new 
product acquisition plan, marketing plan and financing plan; negotiations with potential product 
suppliers and distribution partners; the demand for similar products worldwide; and the amount 
of available capital. Further, the extent to which we carry out our business plan is dependent 
upon the amount of financing available to us. 

Competitive Conditions and Position 

See above, and “Section 17, Risk Factors, Competition”. 

5. Selected Consolidated Financial Information  

Annual Information 

We were incorporated on April 2, 2014 and our first fiscal year end is March 31, 2015. The 
following tables set out certain financial information for our wholly-owned subsidiary, Highmark 
International Marketing, from the date of incorporation on March 19, 2014 to March 31, 2014. 
The audited financial statements for Highmark International Marketing for the period ended 
March 31, 2014 are included in this listing statement attached as Schedule “A”. MD&A are 
attached as Schedule “B”. 

The information provided in this section is qualified in its entirety by the financial 
statements attached as Schedule “A” to this Listing Statement. Reference should be 
made to those financial statements.  

 
 Period from 

Incorporation to  
March 31, 2014 

 $ 
(Audited) 

   
 

   Total earnings  0 
Total expenses 14,610 
    Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period (14,610) 
  Loss per share, basic and diluted (1) (0.01) 
    Weighted average shares outstanding 2,166,667 
  Total Assets 147,390 
Total Liabilities 3,500 
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Dividends 

Dividends can be declared by our board of directors when deemed appropriate from time to 
time. To date, we have not declared any dividends on our Common Shares and it is unlikely that 
earnings will be available for the payment of dividends in the foreseeable future. Our company 
is in the start-up phase and we intend to retain our earnings, if any, to finance the development 
and growth of our business. The payment of dividends in the future will depend on our earnings 
and financial condition and such other factors as our Board may consider appropriate. 

Foreign GAAP  

Not applicable. 

6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis  

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial statements is included in this Listing 
Statement as Schedule “B”. 

7. Market for Securities  

In May 2014, our Common Shares commenced trading on the Exchange under the trading 
symbol “HMK”. 

8. Consolidated Capitalization  

The following table summarizes our consolidated capitalization as of the date of this Listing 
Statement:  
 

Designation of Security 
Number of Shares 
Authorized 

Number of Shares  
Issued and Outstanding 

Common Shares Unlimited 12,025,000 

Stock Options Unlimited 400,000 

For further details about our issued securities, see Section 10 – Prior Sales.  

9. Options to Purchase Securities  

As of the date of this Listing Statement, there are 400,000 outstanding options to purchase our 
Common Shares. 50,000 stock options with an exercise price of $0.10 have been issued to 
BridgeMark Financial Corp.  The balance of the options have been issued to our directors as 
described in Section 13 – Directors and Officers.  
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10. Description of the Securities 

Authorized Capital 

Common Shares.  Our authorized capital consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares, 
of which 12,025,000 are issued and outstanding as at the date of this Listing Statement.  
Holders of our Common Shares are entitled to vote at all meetings of common shareholders of 
the Company declared by our directors and, subject to the rights of holders of any shares 
ranking in priority to or on a parity with the Common Shares, to participate rateably in any 
distribution of property or assets upon the liquidation, winding-up or other dissolution of the 
Company.   

We have 400,000 outstanding convertible securities. 50,000 stock options with an exercise price 
of $0.10 have been issued to BridgeMark Financial Corp.  The balance of the options have been 
issued to our directors as described in Section 13 – Directors and Officers.  

Modification of Terms 

Subject to the BCBCA, our directors may, by ordinary resolution, create special rights or 
restrictions for and attach those special rights or restrictions to, or vary or delete any special 
rights or restrictions attached to, the shares of any class or series of shares, whether or not any 
or all of those shares have been issued, and alter the Company’s Notice of Articles and Articles 
accordingly. 

Other Attributes 

We may, if authorized by our directors, purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any of our 
issued and outstanding shares at such price and upon such terms as determined by resolutions 
of our directors. 

Prior Sales  

We completed the Arrangement with Pubco, a company who is a reporting issuer in British 
Columbia and Alberta. Pursuant to the Arrangement the corporate structure of our business was 
reorganized: Highmark International Marketing became our wholly-owned subsidiary, and the 
former shareholders of Highmark International Marketing exchanged all of their shareholdings 
therein for our common shares.  

The table below sets out the prior sales of common shares in the authorized capital of Highmark 
International Marketing from the date of incorporation on March 19, 2014 to the May 7, 2014: 

HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC. 

Date of issuance Type of 
security 
issued 

Number of 
securities 

issued 

Price per 
security 

Value 
received 

Type of 
transaction 

March 19, 2014 (1) Common 
Shares 

10 
(10)  

$0.005 NIL -  
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March 19, 2014 (2) Common 
shares 

2,000,000 $0.005 $10,000 Cash 

March 31, 2014(2) Common 
shares 

7,425,000 $0.02 $148,500 Cash 

April 4, 2014(2) Common 
shares 

1,000,000 $0.05 $50,000 Cash 

April 16, 2014(2) Common 
shares 

1,600,000 $0.10 $160,000 Cash 

(1) Incorporator’s shares which were repurchased and cancelled on March 19, 2014. 
(2) Shares issued to investors by private placement. 
 
The above common shares in our subsidiary were exchanged for our Common Shares on a 1-
for-1 basis on May 8, 2014. 

 

11. Escrowed Securities  
 
We have entered into the following stock restriction agreements: 

1. Stock Restriction Agreement with David Taylor dated April 29, 2014; 
2. Stock Restriction Agreement with Marc Branson dated April 29, 2014; and   
3. Stock Restriction Agreement with Peter Schriber dated April 29, 2014. 

Mr. Taylor, Mr. Branson and Mr. Schriber have agreed that until they either sell all the shares 
that are the subject of the stock restriction agreement, or one year from the date on which our 
securities are listed on the Canadian Securities Exchange (whichever is earlier), they will not 
transfer or otherwise dispose of their Common Shares, and will hold on the Exchange Listing 
Date without our prior written consent, except that such restriction will not apply to proportions of 
the shares vesting as follows:  

Vesting Date Proportion of Vested Shares 

On the Listing Date 1/10 of the Stock  

6 months after the Listing Date 1/6 of the remainder of the Stock 

12 months after the Listing Date 1/5 of the remainder of the Stock 

18 months after the Listing Date 1/4 of the remainder of the Stock 

24 months after the Listing Date 1/3 of the remainder of the Stock 

30 months after the Listing Date 1/2 of the remainder of the Stock 

36 months after the Listing Date The remainder of the Stock 
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provided however that such restrictions will not apply to a transfer of the shares: 

(a) to any of our directors, officers, employees or consultants; 
(b) to us, pursuant to a redemption initiated by us;  
(c) during the shareholder’s lifetime or on the Shareholder’s death by will or intestacy to the 

shareholder’s beneficiaries or a trust for the benefit of the shareholder’s beneficiaries (for 
purposes of this Stock Restriction Agreement, “beneficiary” means the shareholder and 
the immediate family of the shareholder, including any relation by blood, marriage or 
adoption and no remote than a first cousin); or 

(d) if the shareholder is an entity, a transfer made as a distribution solely to a member, 
partner, or stockholder of such Shareholder 

so long as the transferee executes a joinder to the Stock Restriction Agreement and any other 
agreements reasonably required us, pursuant to which such transferee(s) agree to be bound by 
the terms and conditions of the Stock Restriction Agreement. 

The following table sets out information on the number of Common Shares held by each holder 
that are subject to the terms of the Stock Restriction Agreement: 

  

Escrow Holders Number of Escrowed 
Common Shares 

Percentage of Class (1) 

Marc Branson 971,000 8% 

David Taylor 971,000 8% 

Peter Schriber 500,000 4% 

TOTAL 2,442,000 20% 

(1) Based on12, 025,000 Common Shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this Listing Statement. 

12. Principal Shareholders  

The following table provides information regarding our principal shareholders as of the date of 
this Listing Statement: 
 

Name Ownership Number of 
Common 
Shares 

Percentage of 
Class (1) 

Marc Branson 
 

Of record and 
beneficially 

971,000 8% 

David Taylor Of record and 
beneficially 

971,000 8% 

(1) Based on 12,025,000 Common Shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this Listing Statement. 
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13. Directors and Officers  

Management Experience 

Our management has a broad background of experience which will be brought to bear on the 
activities undertaken by us.  The following table sets out the names of current directors and 
executive officers, their effective date of appointment as our directors or executive officers, and 
the number of common shares in our authorized capital which each beneficially owns, directly or 
indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised as of the date of this Listing Statement. 

 

Name, Position and 
Place of Residence 

Date of 
Appointment 

Ownership 
Interest (1)(2) 

 

 

 

Number of 
Convertible or 
Exchangeable 

Securities 
Outstanding 

Total number of 
Common Shares 

Beneficially 
Owned or 

Controlled and 
Convertible or 
Exchangeable 

Securities 
Outstanding 

Marc Branson (3) –  
CEO and  Director 
West Vancouver, 
British Columbia 

 

Incorporation 
(April 2, 2014)  

(8%) 
971,000 
shares 

 
250,000 
options 

(10%) 
1,221,000 
shares and 

options 

David Taylor (3)  -   
Director 
North Vancouver, 
British Columbia 

 

Incorporation 
(April 2, 2014)  

(8%) 
971,000 
shares 

 
50,000 
options 

(8%) 
1,021,000 
shares and 

options 

Peter Schriber (3) –  
Director 
Zurich, Switzerland  
 

Incorporation 
(April 2, 2014)  

(4%) 
500,000 
shares 

 
50,000 
options 

(4%) 
550,000 

shares and 
options 

Simon Tso – 
CFO 
Vancouver, British 
Columbia 

Incorporation 
 (April 2, 2014)  

(0%) 
NIL shares 

 
NIL 

options 

(0%) 
NIL  

shares and 
options 

 
(1) Term of office expires upon holding the first annual meeting of shareholders. 
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(2) Percentage ownership based on 12,025,000 of our Common Shares issued and outstanding at the date of this 
Listing Statement. 

(3) Audit Committee member. 
 
Marc Branson, CEO and Director 

Marc Branson has over 10 years’ experience in running companies and is involved in the 
design, manufacture and sale of retail products.  He also has over 15 years’ experience in 
corporate finance and consulting, and has acted as a director for several public companies.  

From November 2010 to date, Mr. Branson has served as CEO, President & a Director of 
RedLion Resources Corporation, a privately-held mineral exploration company that holds, 
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, mineral concessions covering 1,994 hectares in Bolivar, 
Colombia. 

From 2013 to date, Mr. Branson has been a principal of Bridgemark Capital Corp., a financial 
consulting firm providing services in connection with developing financial strategies, undertaking 
capital raises and negotiating strategic partnerships.  Bridgemark has an established 
international network of financial industry professionals including investment advisors, bank 
owned investment dealers and leading independent financial firms. 

From 2007 to date, Mr. Branson has acted as Managing Director of Raincity Manufacturing, 
specializing in original equipment and original design manufacturing within the telecom industry.  
Raincity manufactures specialty telecom products and other consumer electronics.  As well, 
Raincity provides research & development, engineering, design, and manufacturing services to 
a diverse set of international clients.  Mr. Branson, as CEO, oversees product development, 
logistics and customer acquisition. 

From 2007 to date, Mr. Branson has been President of Global Strategy Solutions, a 
management & consulting company focused on international management. 

From February 2007 to March 2012, Mr. Branson served as a Director of Nitinat Minerals 
(TSXV:NZZ.V), a publicly traded mining exploration company with British Columbia mineral 
interests. 

From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Branson was CEO, President & Co-Founder of Moto Ergonomics Ltd., 
involved in the design, manufacture and sale of telecommunication and specialty 
communications equipment.  The customers of Moto Ergonomics included, but were not limited 
to, companies such as Future Shop, Best Buy, Costco, Bell Canada, Alliant, MTS, Sasktel & 
London Drugs.  

From May 2007 to date, Mr. Tylor has acted as President of Capital Street Group Investment 
Services Inc.  Mr. Taylor provides consultation to public companies with regard to financing and 
has also advised foreign companies about market activates in Canada.  Mr. Taylor has 
conducted investor relations activities and road shows. 
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From December 2011 to date, Mr. Taylor has acted as Director and President to Cardea Metals 
Corporation. He has been involved in advancing small scale copper-gold mines in Peru in 
preparation for production. 

From January 2010 to October 2013, Mr. Taylor was an Independent Director for Central Iron 
Ore Limited (CIO.V), a company based in Perth, Australia.  Mr. Taylor acted as the Canadian 
representative of the issuer and conducted liaison activities between the Australian issuer and 
Canadian regulators, primarily the BCSC.  He also liaised with the TSXV and Canadian 
shareholders. 

Peter Schriber, Director 

Peter A. Schriber graduated with a commerce degree in Switzerland and entered a banking 
career in Switzerland and Canada. Mr. Schriber has extensive experience in merchant and 
commercial banking, specializing in corporate finance. In 1970, Peter Schriber was bank 
manager at CIBC in Vancouver and he completed his Canadian Banking Fellowship.  From 
1980 to 1983, Peter Schriber went on to act as manager of Corporate Finance with Swiss Bank 
Corporation in Toronto and Vancouver.  In 1983 to 1991 he was a partner and director for 
Pacific International where also he acted as a broker. He was appointed as Vice President for a 
private Swiss bank and acted as a private portfolio manager. Since 1999, Peter Schriber has 
worked as a consultant, managing private investors’ portfolios and has been active as a 
consultant for institutional and private investors. He is active in M&A including raising equity and 
debt funds for private and public companies.  From 2004 to 2009, Peter Schriber was a director 
and on the Board of Kodiak Energy Oil and Gas.  Peter Schriber has considerable international 
experience within the corporate banking and corporate financing sectors. 

Simon Tso, Chief Financial Officer 

Simon Tso is an Associate at BridgeMark Financial Corp. (late 2011-present) and specializes in 
providing corporate finance, valuation, taxation, financial reporting, consulting and other 
accounting services to both small businesses as well as public commodity resource companies. 
Simon also assists in many aspects of clients’ administration, financing and other activities. 
Prior to his current role at BridgeMark Financial, Simon working at HSBC Bank Canada from 
2009 until 2011 and worked towards his Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) Charter. During this 
time he progressed from a customer-oriented role in a branch to a support role in HSBC’s 
lending administration (2010 - early 2011) and then to a financial risk management role in 
HSBC’s commercial banking department (early 2011 – late 2011).  

At present, Simon is working with numerous publicly-traded junior resource companies and 
acting as their financial controller, looking after their financial status, reporting, compliance and 
other matters.  Simon holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree (with Honours) from the Sauder 
School of Business at the University of British Columbia. 

#108948-4 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

Page 29 



 

Kirk Marsh, Online Marketing Consultant 
 
In addition to the experience of our directors and officers, we will draw upon the experience of 
our consultant, Kirk Marsh.  We entered into a Consulting Agreement with Kirk Marsh on April 
23, 2014. Kirk Marsh will act as our Online Marketing Consultant.  He has a vast amount of 
experience which he will bring to our Company. 
 
Kirk Marsh has over 15 years of experience spanning across industries such as manufacturing, 
digital advertising technologies, lead generation, digital marketing, video advertising, real-time 
creative and mobile technologies.  He brings a diverse background that includes start up, 
operations, business strategy, VC funding, business development, monetization, software 
development, product development and market positioning.  He has worked with companies big 
and small, from local businesses with global reach to fortune 500 companies such as Hyundai, 
UPS, Ogilvy, Smart USA and Mars-Nutro. 

From August 2012 to date, Kirk has been a Principal and Co-Founder of getCleverMedia a Walk 
Light Media initiative providing an integrated real-time creative solution allowing advertisers to 
move beyond the traditional concept of display advertising. Its architecture is built to provide 
design flexibility and ease of real-time data integration. getCleverMedia’s real-time display ads 
are media agnostic with the ability to deliver to desktop, mobile and tablets from sources 
ranging from real time bidding (RTB) platforms to publisher direct. Used by clients such as 
Hyundai and Nutro to increase audience engagement and campaign performance. 

From 2009 to date, Mr Marsh has been the CEO, and Co-Founder of Walk Light Media, a digital 
advertising and technology company focused on the Conscientious Consumer market. Mr. 
Marsh has provided unique advertising solutions ranging from native advertising, content 
sponsorship, dynamic creative and display, to fortune 500 brands such as UPS, Mars-Nutro, 
BMW, Home Depot, National Geographic, Hyundai, Smart Car and more. 

From 2009 to date, Mr Marsh acted as the President and was the Co-Founder of an in-situ 
hardware solution for the tracking of mobile devices called RallyAd. The technology makes use 
of proprietary hardware and software to collect the unique identifiers (PII compliant) of mobile 
devices within a physical location. The data can be leveraged for in-store footfall traffic 
analytics, business intelligence, digital advertising, behavioural profiling and consumer 
intelligence. 

From 2008 to 2010, Mr. Marsh sat on the advisory board of AfterCad which developed a patent 
pending technology for the rendering of 3D buildings which are geo-located and overlaid on top 
of online maps such as Google maps. 

From April to December of 2009, Mr. Marsh acted as a Consultant, VP Sales and Business 
Development for MovieSet, a next generation platform that brings behind-the-scenes filmmaking 
online, giving fans authentic access through its proprietary toolkit for Producers. 

From 2007 to 2009, Mr. Marsh was an Advertising Revenue Consultant to Osmosus a unique 
online social community created to address the growing need for dialogue, learning and action 
related to the environment and sustainability. 

From 2008 to 2009, Mr. Marsh sat on the advisory board of Super U, an online venue to watch 
the latest Canadian short films. Viewers enjoy high quality content, qualified by the viewers 
themselves. Filmmakers enjoy on-site contests and exposure to broadcasters like Super U’s 
partner Super Channel, Canada's national pay television network. 
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From 2008 to 2009 served as the CEO, and Co-Founder to RallyAd Server, which provided a 
free hosted ad server solution to web Publishers. Reducing the infrastructure resources and 
cost associated with advertising delivery, allowing the Publisher to focus on sales and content 
generation. 

From 2007 to 2008 Mr. Marsh Provided consulting services to VideoClix a next generation 
clickable video platform with a robust monetization solution for content providers, and an 
effective non-intrusive media vehicle for advertisers. 

During 2007 Mr. Marsh acted as the Director of Media for Adzilla New Media’s.  The primary 
business was the optimization of online advertising, via data collected from Internet Service 
Providers (ISP). 

Board Committees 

Our Audit Committee consists of 3 members:  Marc Branson, David Taylor and Peter Schriber  

Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy 

None of our directors, officers, insiders or promoters, nor a shareholder holding a sufficient 
number of our securities to affect materially our control, nor a personal holding company of any 
such persons has, within the past 10 years before the date of this Listing Statement, 
become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency 
or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or 
had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold their assets. 

Other than as disclosed herein below, during the past 10 years, none of our directors, officers, 
insiders, or promoters, or a shareholder holding a sufficient number of our securities to affect 
materially the control of us, was a director, officer, insider, or promoter of any other issuer that, 
while that person was acting in that capacity, was the subject of a cease trade order or similar 
order or an order that denied that issuer access to any exemptions under applicable securities 
legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, or became bankrupt, made a 
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, 
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of that person. 

None of our directors or officers or, to our knowledge, shareholders holding sufficient 
securities to affect materially the control of Highmark Marketing, has been subject to any 
penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a 
Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a 
Canadian securities regulatory authority, or has been subject to any other penalties or 
sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be likely to be considered 
important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision.  

Potential Conflicts 

Our directors are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best 
interest of our company and to disclose any interests which they may have in any of our projects 
or opportunities.  If a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the Board, any director in a 
conflict will disclose his interest and abstain from voting on such matter.  In determining whether 
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or not we will participate in any project or opportunity, that director will primarily consider the 
degree of risk to which we may be exposed and our company’s financial position at that time. 

To the best of our knowledge, there are no known existing or potential conflicts of interest 
among our company and our promoters, directors, officers or other members of management as 
a result of their outside business interests except that certain of the directors, officers, 
promoters and other members of management serve as directors, officers, promoters and 
members of management of other public companies, and therefore it is possible that a conflict 
may arise between their duties as a director, officer, promoter or member of management of 
such other companies 

Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy 

None of our directors, officers, insiders or promoters, nor a shareholder holding a sufficient 
number of our securities to affect materially our control, nor a personal holding company of any 
such persons has, within the past 10 years before the date of this Listing Statement, 
become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency 
or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or 
had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold their assets. 

Other than as disclosed herein below, during the past 10 years, none of our directors, officers, 
insiders, or promoters, or a shareholder holding a sufficient number of our securities to affect 
materially the control of us, was a director, officer, insider, or promoter of any other issuer that, 
while that person was acting in that capacity, was the subject of a cease trade order or similar 
order or an order that denied that issuer access to any exemptions under applicable securities 
legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, or became bankrupt, made a 
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, 
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of that person. 

None of our directors or officers or, to our knowledge, shareholders holding sufficient 
securities to affect materially our control, has been subject to any penalties or sanctions 
imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities 
regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian securities 
regulatory authority, or has been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a 
court or regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable 
investor making an investment decision.  

Potential Conflicts 

Our directors are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best 
interests sand to disclose any interests which they may have in any of our projects or 
opportunities.  If a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the Board, any director in a conflict 
will disclose his interest and abstain from voting on such matter.  In determining whether or not 
we will participate in any project or opportunity, that director will primarily consider the degree of 
risk to which we may be exposed and our financial position at that time. 

To the best of our knowledge, there are no known existing or potential conflicts of interest 
among us and our promoters, directors, officers or other members of management as a result of 
their outside business interests except that certain of the directors, officers, promoters and other 
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members of management serve as directors, officers, promoters and members of management 
of other public companies, and therefore it is possible that a conflict may arise between their 
duties as a director, officer, promoter or member of management of such other companies.  

14. Capitalization  

The following tables provide information about our capitalization as of the date of this Listing 
Statement: 
 

Description of security 
Number authorized to 

be issued 

Number outstanding as at 
the date of this Listing 

Statement 

Common Shares No maximum 12,025,000 

Stock Options  No maximum 400,000 

 

Issued Capital  
Number of 
Securities 
(non-diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 
(fully-
diluted) 

% (non-
diluted)  

% 
(fully 
dilute
d) 

Public Float      

Total Outstanding (A)  12,025,000 12,425,000 100% 100% 

Held by Related Persons or employees of 
the Issuer or Related Person of the Issuer, 
or by persons or companies who 
beneficially own or control, directly or 
indirectly, more than a 5% voting position 
in the Issuer (or who would beneficially 
own or control, directly or indirectly, more 
than a 5% voting position in the Issuer 
upon exercise or conversion of other 
securities held) (B) 2,442,000 

                 
2,842,000  20% 20% 

Total Public Float (A-B) 9,583,000 9,583,000 80% 80% 

Freely Tradable Float  
 
Number of outstanding securities subject 
to resale restrictions, including restrictions 
imposed by pooling or other arrangements 
or in a shareholder agreement and 
securities held by control block holders (C) 2,442,000 2,442,000 20% 20% 

Total Tradable Float (A-C) 9,583,000 9,983,000 80% 80% 
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Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 

Class of Security    

Size of Holdings  Number of Holders  Total number of securities  

1 – 99 securities  Zero Zero 

100 – 499 securities  Zero Zero 

500 – 999 securities  116 58,000 

1,000 – 1,999 securities  Zero Zero 

2,000 – 2,999 securities  Zero Zero 

3,000 – 3,999 securities  Zero Zero 

4,000 – 4,999 securities  Zero Zero 

5,000 or more securities  39 11,967,000 

Total 155 12,025,000 
 
Proposed Share Issuances 
 
We recognize that we may need to raise additional capital and plan to do so with further private 
placements of common shares.  However, we want to ensure that further share issuances 
pursuant to private placement occur in stages, so as to minimize dilution to the value of the 
shares held by our existing shareholders.  Our goal is that each of the proposed private 
placement financings will take place at a higher price per share than the one preceding.  (For 
more on these proposed private placement financings, see Item 4 – Narrative Description of 
Business.)  

Convertible Securities 

The following table summarizes the outstanding securities convertible into common shares in 
our authorized capital as of the date of this Listing Statement: 

 

Description of the Security 
(including conversion or 
exercise terms, including 
conversion or exercise 
price) 

Number of Convertible or 
Exchangeable Securities 

Outstanding 
Number of Listed Securities 
Issuable Upon Conversion 

or Exercise 

Stock Options 400,000 400,000 
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15. Executive Compensation  

Compensation to be paid to our officers and directors will be determined by our Board once the 
company’s operations have been established, in accordance with management consulting 
agreements that the Issuer’s plans to enter into with its officers and directors. 

Compensation Discussion and Analysis, 

We rely on the board of directors to determine the executive compensation that is to be paid to 
executive officers.  The compensation paid to each named executive officer since incorporation 
is as set out in the following Summary Compensation Table: 
 

Name and 
principal 
position Year 

Salary 
($) 

Share 
based 
awards 

($) 

Option 
based 
awards 

($) 

Non-Equity Incentive 
Plan compensation 

Pension 
value ($) 

All other 
compen-

sation 
($) 

Total 
compen-
sation ($) 

Annual 
Incentive 

Plans 

Long 
term 

Incentive 
Plans 

Marc 
Branson,  
CEO 

 
2014 zero zero (1) zero zero zero zero (1) 

Tak Tsan 
Tso, CFO 

 
2014 Zero zero  zero  zero zero zero zero zero 

(1) Marc Branson received 250,000 options to purchase shares at an exercise price of $0.10 per 
share on May 1, 2014.  

Incentive Plan Awards 

We have adopted a stock option plan.  We adopted a stock option plan on May 1, 2014.  The 
options have an exercise price of $0.10 per share. 

Pension Plan Benefits 

We do not currently provide any pension plan benefits to our executive officers, directors, or 
employees. 

Employment Agreements and Termination and Change of Control Benefits 

Highmark International Marketing Inc. into an executive consulting agreement dated April 23, 
2014, as follows: 

a) Kirk Marsh for consulting services fulfilling the duties of Online Marketing Consultant at 
$2,000 per month plus travel and media costs which have been approved by us prior to 
the same being incurred. 
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The term of the Consulting Agreement is from April 23, 2014 until April 30, 2015. The 
agreement is then automatically renewed unless notice is given to the other party at least 30 
days prior to the date upon which the renewal would otherwise occur. The Consulting 
Agreement may be terminated by either party upon the provision of 15 days written notice to the 
other party. 

There are no compensatory plans or arrangements with respect to the named executive officers 
resulting from the resignation, retirement or any other termination of employment of the officer’s 
employment or from a change of named executive officers’ responsibilities following a Change 
of Control.  We have not granted any termination or change of control benefits.  In case of 
termination of named executive officers, common law and statutory law applies.  

Director Compensation 

The following are all amounts of compensation provided to our directors:  

 

Name 

Fees 
earned 

($) 

Share-
based 
award

s 
($) 

Option-
based 
awards 

($) 

Non-Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
compensati

on ($) 

Pension 
value 

($) 

All other 
compen
sation 

($) 
Total 

($) 

David 
Taylor 

zero zero (1) zero zero $10,000 $10,000 
(2) 

Peter 
Schriber 

zero zero (1) zero zero zero (2) 

(1)  Payment made pursuant to Asset Purchase Agreement between RMDC Holdings Corp. and Highmark 
International Marketing Inc. dated April 29, 2014. David Taylor is a principal shareholder of RMDC Holdings Corp. 

(2) Received 50,000 options to purchase shares at an exercise price of $0.10 per share on May 1, 2014.  

There are no other arrangements from those disclosed above under which our directors were 
compensated by our Company to the date of this Listing Statement.  

16. Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers  

None of our directors, executive officers, or any associate or affiliate of any such director or 
senior officer, is or has been indebted to us since the date of incorporation.  None of our 
directors, executive officers, or associate or affiliate of any such director or senior officer, is or 
has been indebted to us since the beginning of the last completed financial year.   

17. Risk Factors  

The following are certain factors relating to our business which prospective investors should 
carefully consider before deciding whether to purchase our Common Shares.  The following 
information is a summary only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by reference 
to, and must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this 
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Listing Statement. These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones we are facing.  Additional 
risk and uncertainties not presently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, may also 
impair our operations.  If any such risks actually occur, the business, financial condition, liquidity 
and results of our operations could be materially adversely affected. 
 

Forward Looking Information  

Certain information set out in this Listing Statement includes or is based upon expectations, 
estimates, projections or other “forward looking information”. Such forward looking information 
includes projections or estimates made by the Company and its management about the 
Company’s future business operations. While such forward looking statements and the 
assumptions underlying them are made in good faith and reflect the Company’s current 
judgment regarding the direction of their business, actual results will almost certainly vary 
(sometimes materially) from any estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions or other type 
of performance suggested here. 

Market Risk for Securities 
We are a private company whose Common Shares are not listed for trading on a stock 
exchange. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for our Common Shares 
will be established and sustained.  Upon listing, the market price for our Common Shares could 
be subject to wide fluctuations.  Factors such as commodity prices, government regulation, 
interest rates, share price movements of our peer companies and competitors, as well as overall 
market movements, may have a significant impact on the market price of our securities.  The 
stock market has from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations, which 
have often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. 

Nutraceutical Market Risk 

The marketing and distribution of the products will be dependent upon either gaining or retaining 
regulatory approval as well as licenses from the appropriate regulatory bodies. There can be no 
assurance that the Products will not be seriously affected by, or become obsolete as a result of, 
regulatory changes in any jurisdiction where we distribute the products. There is a risk that 
similar products may be developed after our products are released that are more appealing to 
consumers.  There is also a risk that consumers will not accept or adopt our products. The 
occurrence of any of these events could decrease the amount of interest generated in the 
products and prevent us from generating revenues or reduce the revenue generating potential 
of the products. 

No Operating History Risk 

We have obtained an assignment of a license to market and distribute the Vitapect™ product 
line and have not entered into the distribution stage.  We intend to engage in the marketing, 
distribution and sale of other nutritional products. We will be subject to all of the business risks 
and uncertainties associated with any new business enterprise, including the risks that we will 
be unable to acquire and distribute our proposed products, establish a market for our products, 
achieve our growth objectives or become profitable. It may take several years to achieve 
positive cash flow from operations. There can be no assurance that there will be consumer 
demand for the Products or that we will become profitable. 
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Competitive and Pricing Risk 

The market for nutraceutical products is highly competitive and rapidly changing.  We intend to 
offer our Products to a broad client base. We expect our Product to compete with a number of 
well-established manufacturers and distributors of nutraceutical products such as Weber 
Naturals, Jamieson Laboratories Ltd., Advanced Orthomolecular Research Inc. and Les 
Importations Herbasanté Inc. 

Our potential competitors may have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and 
other resources, may be able to devote greater resources to the development, promotion, sale 
and support of their products and services, may have more extensive customer bases and 
broader customer relationships and may have longer operating histories and more brand 
recognition.  In some cases, these companies may choose to offer their products at lower prices 
or rates in response to new competitors entering the market.  If we are unable to compete with 
such companies, we may be unable to establish demand for our Products, which could 
adversely affect the establishment of our operations and our ability to begin generating 
revenues.  

Intellectual Property Risk 

The success of our business depends in part on our ability to protect the intellectual property 
rights associated with the Products. We have the exclusive right to distribute the Vitapect™ 
product line in California State and throughout the North American market on a non-exclusive 
basis.  Furthermore, as long as we maintain an order amount of 5,000 Euros per each six month 
period, we will have a right of first refusal for an exclusive license of an additional two market 
jurisdiction from Oregon State. Washington State, Idaho State and British Columbia, e.g. British 
Columbia and Washington State.  We would require written permission of the licensor to 
distribute Vitapect™ outside the North American market. There is a risk that we will not be able 
to maintain an order amount of 5,000 Euros per month, or that we will not be able to obtain an 
exclusive license for one or more of the market jurisdiction if we do not maintain the requisite 
order amount.  Another agent or distributor of Vitapect™ may have already acquired an 
exclusive license for the market jurisdictions by the time we have maintained the requisite order 
amounts. 

Even though we have acquired a license from a licensor who we believe has protected 
Vitapect™ with various patents, trademarks and copyrights, there can be no assurance that 
other manufacturers will not develop similar products or that the licensor will continue to 
vigorously police and defend unauthorized use of Vitapect™, measures which can be difficult 
and costly. Foreign countries may not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as 
Canada. To protect intellectual property rights in the future, we may take further precautions and 
may pursue litigation, which may result in substantial expenses, divert the attention of 
management, cause significant delays, materially disrupt the conduct of our business or 
adversely affect our revenues, financial condition and results of operation. 
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Advertising and Promotional Risk 

Our future growth and profitability will depend on the effectiveness and efficiency of 
advertising and promotional costs, including our ability to (i) create brand recognition for the 
Products; (ii) determine appropriate advertising strategies, messages and media; and (iii) 
maintain acceptable operating margins on such costs.  There can be no assurance that 
advertising and promotional costs will result in revenues for our business in the future, or will 
generate awareness of our technologies or services. In addition, no assurance can be given 
that we will be able to manage our advertising and promotional costs on a cost-effective 
basis.  

Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk 

We may become subject to liability for risks against which we cannot insure or against which 
we may elect not to insure due to the high cost of insurance premiums or other factors. The 
payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds available for our usual business 
activities. Payment of liabilities for which we do not carry insurance may have a material 
adverse effect on our financial position and operations.  

Conflicts of Interest Risk 

Certain of our directors and officers are, and may continue to be, involved in other business 
ventures in the technology industry through their direct and indirect participation in 
corporations, partnerships, joint ventures, etc. that may become potential competitors of the 
products we intend to provide. Situations may arise in connection with potential acquisitions 
or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with or 
diverge from our interests.  In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material 
interest in any person who is a party to a material contract or a proposed material contract 
are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and generally abstain 
from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In addition, the directors and the 
officers are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests. 
However, in conflict of interest situations, our directors and officers may owe the same duty 
to another company and will need to balance their competing interests with their duties to 
us. Circumstances (including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that 
may be resolved in a manner that is unfavourable to us. 

Key Personnel Risk 

Our success will depend on our directors and officers to develop our business and manage 
our operations, and on our ability to attract and retain key technical, sales and marketing 
staff or consultants once marketing, distribution and sales begin. The loss of any key person 
or the inability to find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on 
our business. Competition for qualified sales and marketing staff, as well as officers and 
directors can be intense and no assurance can be provided that we will be able to attract or 
retain key personnel in the future, which may adversely impact our operations.  

Speculative Nature of Investment Risk 

An investment in our Common Shares carries a high degree of risk and should be 
considered as a speculative investment by purchasers. We have no history of earnings, 
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limited cash reserves, a limited operating history, have not paid dividends, and are unlikely 
to pay dividends in the immediate or near future. We are in the development and planning 
phases of our business and have not started commercialization of our products and 
services. Our operations are not yet sufficiently established such that we can mitigate the 
risks associated with our planned activities. 

No Established Market for Shares Risk 

There is currently no established trading market through which common shares in our 
authorized capital may be sold. Even if a trading market develops, there can be no 
assurance that such market will continue in the future. You may lose your entire investment.  

Liquidity and Future Financing Risk 

We will likely operate at a loss until our business becomes established and we may require 
additional financing in order to fund future operations and expansion plans. We need to 
raise at least $500,000 further funds to carry out our business plan but we do not yet have a 
commitment from anyone to invest the funds. Our ability to secure any required financing to 
sustain its operations will depend in part upon prevailing capital market conditions, as well 
as our business success. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in our 
efforts to secure any additional financing or additional financing on terms satisfactory to our 
management. If additional financing is raised by issuing Common Shares in our authorized 
capital, control of our company may change and shareholders may suffer additional dilution. 
If adequate funds are not available, or are not available on acceptable terms, we may be 
required to scale back our business plan or cease operating. 

Going-Concern Risk 

Our financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under which an 
entity is considered to be able to realize its assets and satisfy its liabilities in the ordinary 
course of business. Our future operations are dependent upon the identification and 
successful completion of equity or debt financing and the achievement of profitable 
operations at an indeterminate time in the future. There can be no assurances that we will 
be successful in completing an equity or debt financing or in achieving profitability. The 
financial statements do not give effect to any adjustments relating to the carrying values and 
classification of assets and liabilities that would be necessary should we be unable to 
continue as a going concern. 

Global Economy Risk 

The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally 
made the raising of capital by equity or debt financing more difficult. We will be dependent 
upon the capital markets to raise additional financing in the future, while we establish a user 
base for our Products. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the ongoing 
global economic downturn. As such, we are subject to liquidity risks in meeting our 
development and future operating cost requirements in instances where cash positions are 
unable to be maintained or appropriate financing is unavailable. These factors may impact 
our ability to raise equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future and on terms 
favourable to us and our management. If uncertain market conditions persist, our ability to 
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raise capital could be jeopardized, which could have an adverse impact on our operations 
and the trading price of our Common Shares on the CSE. 

Dividend Risk 

We have not paid dividends in the past and do not anticipate paying dividends in the near 
future.  We expect to retain our earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, 
retire debt. 

Share Price Volatility Risk 

It is anticipated that our Common Shares will be listed for trading on the Exchange. As such, 
external factors outside of our control such as announcements of quarterly variations in 
operating results, revenues and costs, and sentiments toward nutraceutical sector stocks 
may have a significant impact on the market price of our Common Shares. Global stock 
markets, including the Exchange, have from time to time experienced extreme price and 
volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated to the operations of particular 
companies. The same applies to companies in the nutraceutical sector. There can be no 
assurance that an active or liquid market will develop or be sustained for the Common 
Shares. 

Increased Costs of Being a Publicly Traded Company 

As a company with publicly-traded securities, we will incur significant legal, accounting and 
filing fees not presently incurred. Securities legislation and the rules and policies of the 
Exchange require listed companies to, among other things, adopt corporate governance and 
related practices, and to continuously prepare and disclose material information, all of which 
will significantly increase our legal and financial compliance costs.  

18. Promoter Consideration 

We have not paid consideration to any promoter within the two years immediately preceding this 
Listing Statement.  

19. Legal Proceedings  

As of the date of this Listing Statement, we are not a party to any material legal proceedings or 
any regulatory actions.  We do not contemplate any material legal proceedings and is not aware 
of any material legal proceedings being contemplated against us. 

20. Interest of Management and Others in Material 
 Transactions  

Other than as disclosed below, no director, executive officer or principal shareholder of us, or an 
associate or affiliate of a director, executive officer or principal shareholder of us, has any 
material interest, direct or indirect, in any transactions which has occurred since our 
incorporation, or in any proposed transaction that has materially affected or will materially affect 
us. On April 29, 2014, Highmark International Marketing Inc. entered into an Asset Purchase 
Agreement with RMDC Holdings Corp. We acquired the following pursuant to the Asset 
Purchase Agreement: a license agreement to distribute Vitapect™ products in North America 
and beyond; ownership of domain names: www.vitapect.ca, www.vitapect.org and 
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www.vitapect.co.uk; online traffic from www.vitapect.com; a corporate website; prepaid 
expenses; and Vitapect™ inventory. David Taylor is our director and he is also a principal 
shareholder of RMDC Holdings Corp.  RMDC Holdings Corp. received $10,000 pursuant to the 
Asset Purchase Agreement. 

21. Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars  

Auditor 

Our auditor is Charlton & Company, Chartered Accountants of 510 - 701 West Georgia Street, 
Vancouver, British Columbia V7Y 1C6.  

Transfer Agent and Registrar 

Our registrar and transfer agent is Computershare Investor Services Inc. of 510 Burrard Street, 
3rd Floor, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3B9. 

22. Material Contracts 

The following table summarizes our material contracts as of the date of this Listing Statement:    

 

Name of 
Contract Parties Date 

Nature of Contract and 
Consideration 

Arrangement 
Agreement 

Highmark International 
Marketing and Pubco 

April 4, 2014 Setting out the terms of a 
statutory Plan of Arrangement 

Executive 
Consulting 
Agreement 

Highmark International 
Marketing and Kirk 
Marsh 

April 23, 2014 Consultant services for $2,000 
per month 

Asset 
Purchase 
Agreement 

Highmark International 
Marketing Inc. and 
RMDC Holdings Corp. 

April 29, 2014 Asset Purchase Agreement 
whereby RMDC Holdings 
Corp. inter alia assigned to 
Highmark International 
Marketing Inc. a license to 
distribute VitapectTM for 
$10,000. 

23. Interest of Experts  

Other than as disclosed above, there are no direct or indirect interest in our Products or the 
Products of a Related Person of the Company received or to be received by a person or 
company whose profession or business gives authority to a statement made by the person or 
company and who is are named as having prepared or certified a part of this Listing Statement 
or prepared or certified a report or valuation described or included in this Listing Statement:  

24. Other Material Facts  

There are no material facts other than as disclosed therein.  
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25. Financial Statements 

The following financial statements are attached as schedules to this Listing Statement: 

• audited financial statements for Highmark International Marketing as at March 31, 2014 
attached as Schedule “A”;  

• Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the period ended March 31, 2014 for the 
audited financial statements of Highmark International Marketing as at March 31, 2014, 
attached as Schedule “B”. 
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SCHEDULE “A” 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
OF HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING AT MARCH 31, 2014  

[inserted as pages following] 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  

(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation)  
to March 31, 2014 

 
Expressed in Canadian Dollars 

 

  



 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Directors of: 
Highmark International Marketing Inc. 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Highmark International Marketing Inc., which comprise the statements 
of financial position as at March 31, 2014, the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, the statement of changes in shareholders’ 
deficiency and the statement of cash flows for the period from the date of incorporation, March 19, 2014, to March 31, 2014, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period then ended.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s  internal control.  An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Highmark International 
Marketing Inc. as at March 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period from the date of incorporation, 
March 19, 2014, to March 31, 2014 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that Highmark International 
Marketing Inc. is dependent on continued financing in order to fund its operations.  This condition, along with other matters as set 
forth in Note 1, indicates the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.   
 

“Charlton & Company” 
            
                    CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Vancouver, BC 
April 28, 2014 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at March 31, 2014 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 
Notes March 31, 2014 

    
Assets    
    
Cash  $ 146,871 
GST receivable   519 
Current and Total Assets  $ 147,390 

    Liabilities 
 
 
 

   
Current Liabilities    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 3,500 
Total Liabilities   3,500 
    
Shareholders’ Equity 

 

   
Share capital 5  158,500 
Deficit   (14,610) 
Total Equity   143,890 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity  $ 147,390 

 
Nature and Continuance of Operations (Note 1) 
Subsequent Events (Note 9) 
 
 
Approved and authorized by the Board on April 28, 2014 
 
 
 
“Marc Branson”                  “David Taylor”   
Marc Branson, Director   David Taylor, Director 
 
 

  

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements 

3 



HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Statement of Comprehensive Loss 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
 

 
 

Notes 

 Period from  
March 19, 2014 (date of 

incorporation) to 
March 31, 2014 

    
Expenses    
 Professional fees   $ 14,610 
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the 
period   (14,610) 
Loss per share – basic and diluted 
 
 

    (0.01) 

Weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding      2,166,667 
 

 

  

 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 Share Capital   

 
Number of 

shares Amount Deficit   Total 
Balance at March 19, 2014 (date of 
incorporation)  -   -  - - 
Shares issued for cash (Note 5) 9,425,000 158,500 - 158,500 
Comprehensive loss for the period -   -   (14,610)   (14,610) 
Balance at March 31, 2014 9,425,000 $ 158,500  $ (14,610)  $ 143,890 

     
 

  

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Statement of Cash Flow 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 
Note 

  

Period from,  
March 19,2014 (date of 

incorporation) to 
March 31, 2014 

Operating activities    
Net loss   $ (14,610) 
Changes in non-cash working capital items:    
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities     3,500 
 GST/HST receivable   (519) 

Net cash flows used in operating activities     (11,629) 
Financing activities    
Shares issued 5  158,500 

Net cash flows from financing activities     158,500 
Increase in cash     146,871 
Cash, beginning of period     - 

Cash end of period   $ 146,871 

    
 
 
 
 

  

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
1. Description of business and nature of operations 

Highmark International Marketing Inc. (formerly Highmark Marketing Corp.) (the “Company”) was 
incorporated under the laws of British Columbia on March 19, 2014. Its registered and records office is 
located at Suite 1820 – 925 West Georgia, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3L2.  The Company is 
currently engaged in the business of marketing and sales of health products in British Columbia, Canada.  
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Company 
will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. As at March 
31, 2014, the Company has not generated any revenues from operations, and has a working capital of 
$143,890, and an accumulated deficit of $14,610. The continued operations of the Company are dependent 
on its ability to generate future cash flows or obtain additional financing. Management is of the opinion that 
sufficient working capital will be obtained from external financing to meet the Company’s liabilities and 
commitments as they become due, although there is a risk that additional financing will not be available on 
a timely basis or on terms acceptable to the Company. These financial statements do not reflect any 
adjustments that may be necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern. These 
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
These financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of its Directors on 
April 28, 2014. 
 

2. Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and 
Interpretations of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). 

Basis of measurement 

These financial statements are stated in Canadian dollars, which is also the functional currency of the 
Company, and were prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, except as 
otherwise specified. 

Significant Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Company to make estimates 
and assumptions concerning the future.  The Company’s management reviews these estimates and 
underlying assumptions on an ongoing basis, based on experience and other factors, including expectations 
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Revisions to estimates are 
adjusted for prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised. 

Estimates and assumptions where there is significant risk of material adjustments to assets and liabilities in 
future accounting periods include the fair value measurements for financial instruments and the 
recoverability and measurement of deferred tax assets.  

Significant Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Company to make judgments, 
apart from those involving estimates, in applying accounting policies.  The most significant judgment in 
applying the Company’s financial statements is the classification of financial instruments and the going 
concern assumption. 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
3. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 

Cash 

Cash consists of the proceeds generated on the issuance of common shares, which is being held in trust. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds 
received or receivables, net of direct issue costs. 

Non-derivative financial instruments 

The Company determines the classification of its non-derivative financial instruments at initial recognition. 
Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership. Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for 
instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below: 

i) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) when the 
financial asset or liability is either held for trading or it is designated as such by management on initial 
recognition. Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or 
losses arising on remeasurement recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. The 
net gain or loss recognized in the statement of comprehensive income incorporates any dividend or interest 
earned. The Company has no classifications in this category. 

ii) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognized at the amount expected to be 
received less, when material, a discount to reduce the loans and receivables to fair value. Subsequently, 
loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less a provision for 
impairment. The Company has classified cash as loans and receivables. 

iii) Other financial liabilities  
 
Other financial liabilities are non-derivative liabilities recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs, and are subsequently stated at amortized cost each period. The Company has classified trade and 
other payables and due to shareholder as other financial liabilities. 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued from previous page)   

 
Income taxes 

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
loss except to the extend it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive loss or directly in equity. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 
is not a business combination. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to 
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax 
assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.  

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Basic and diluted per share calculation: 

The Company presents basic and diluted loss per share data for its common shares. Basic per share amounts 
are calculated by dividing loss attributable to common shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted per share amounts are calculated 
using the “if converted method” and are determined by adjusting the earnings attributable to common 
shareholders and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential agent options.  

4. Future changes in accounting policies 

The following new standards and interpretations are not yet effective and have not been applied in 
preparing these financial statements.  The Company is currently evaluating the potential impacts of these 
new standards and does not anticipate any material changes to the financial statements upon adoption of 
these new and revised accounting pronouncements.  

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (effective January 1, 2015) introduces new requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial assets, and will replace IAS 39. IFRS 9 uses a single approach 
to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple 
classification options available in IAS 39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its 
financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial assets. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the 
multiple impairment methods in IAS 39. 

 

 

9 



HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
5. Share capital 

Authorized  

Unlimited number of common shares without par value. 
 
Issued common shares 

  
Number of 

Shares $ 
   
At inception - March 19, 2014 - - 

Share capital 9,425,000 158,500 
   
Balance, March 31, 2014 9,425,000 158,500 

 

(i) On March 19, 2014, the Company issued 2,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.005 per 
common share for total proceeds of $10,000.  

(ii) On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 7,425,000 common shares at a price of $0.02 per 
common share for total proceeds of $148,500.  

 

 

6. Income taxes 

a) Current Income Taxes 

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates is as follows: 

  March 31, 
2014 

   Net loss for the period $        (14,610) 
   Expected tax recovery at a combined federal and provincial 
rate of 26.00% 

 (3,799) 

   Tax benefit not recognized     (3,799) 
   

   Deferred income tax recovery $ – 

 
 
 
 

  
b) Deferred Taxes 

Significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets (not recognized) after applying 
enacted corporate income tax rates are as follows: 

 

Net deferred income tax asset not recognized $ 3,799 

  March 31, 2014 
         Non-capital loss carry forwards $ 3,799 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
 

6. Income taxes (continued from previous page) 

At March 31, 2014, management considers that it is not “more likely than not” that these losses will not be 
utilized and accordingly a full valuation allowance has been recognized against these losses. 

At March 31, 2014, the Company has Canadian non-capital losses of $3,799 which, if not utilized to reduce 
income in future periods, expire through 2034. 

 

7. Capital management  

The Company’s capital consists of shareholders’ equity. The Company’s objective for managing capital is 
to maintain sufficient capital to maintain and sustain future development of the business.  

The Company sets the amount of capital in relation to risk and manages the capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it in light of changes to economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying 
assets.  

 

8. Financial Instruments 

Fair value represents the price at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an orderly market, in 
an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties who are under no compulsion to 
act. The Company classifies the fair value of the financial instruments according to the following hierarchy 
based on the amount of observable inputs used to value the instrument.  

The following table provides an analysis of the financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is 
observable. 

• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active 
market for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for 
the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

Cash is carried at a level 1 fair value measurement. Trade and other payables and due to shareholder are 
measured using level 3 measurements.  The carrying amount of trade and other payables and due to 
shareholder approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these items. 

The Company manages risk through establishing policies that provide management oversight related to the 
risks of operations, including ensuring that risks are identified and assessed and appropriate policies are in 
place and effective. Financial instruments present a number of specific risks. Market risk is the risk that the 
fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. For purposes of this 
disclosure, market risk is currency risk. Other risks associated with financial instruments include liquidity 
risk. 

 

11 



HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
 
8. Financial Instruments (continued from previous page) 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not have sufficient liquid assets to meet its commitments 
associated with financial liabilities. The Corporation retains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to 
maintain liquidity. As at March 31, 2014, the Company is funded through share issuances and remains 
available to satisfy all current obligations. Trade and other payables are due within one year. 

Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets denominated in currencies, other than the 
functional currency of the Company, will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.  

 
All financial instruments are denominated in Canadian dollars, the functional currency of the Company. 
Therefore, the Company is not significantly exposed to currency risk. 

 
 

9. Subsequent events 

a) Subsequent to the year end, the Company completed the following private placements: 

(i)  On April 2, 2014 the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.05 per share for 
total proceeds of $50,000. 

(ii) On April 16, 2014, the Company issued 1,600,000 common shares at a price of $0.10 per common 
share for total proceeds of $160,000.  

 

b) On April 04, 2014, the Company entered into an Arrangement Agreement (“the Arrangement 
Agreement) with Gorilla and Highmark Marketing Inc. (“Highmark Marketing”, formerly known as 
Highmark Acquisitions Ltd.). Gorilla is a reporting issuer in the provinces of Alberta and British 
Columbia.   

The parties have agreed to reorganize their business by way of a Plan of Arrangement to be carried out 
under the provisions of the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia).  As a part of the 
Arrangement Agreement, the following transactions shall take place: 

i. The Company shall acquire all the 10,000 issued and outstanding Highmark Marketing common 
shares from Gorilla (the “Purchase Shares”) for $10,000; 

ii. The Company and Highmark Marketing shall exchange securities on a 1:1 basis, such that all 
issued and outstanding common shares of the Company shall be exchanged by their holders for the 
same number of shares of Highmark Marketing; 

iii. Gorilla and Highmark Marketing shall exchange securities, as follows: Gorilla shall issue 4 
common shares to Highmark Marketing and Highmark Marketing shall issue 4,000 common 
shares to Gorilla (collectively, the “Exchange Shares”); and 

iv. The Purchase Shares and the Exchange Shares shall then be cancelled. 

Following closing of the Arrangement, Highmark Marketing is expected to become a reporting issuer in 
Alberta and British Columbia and the Company shall become the wholly-owned subsidiary of Highmark 
Marketing. 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  
(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the period from March 19, 2014 (date of incorporation) to March 31, 2014 
 (Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 

 

9. Subsequent events (continued from previous page) 

 

Since this transaction shall result in the shareholders of the Company owning a majority of the issued and 
outstanding shares of the Highmark Marketing, this transaction shall be accounted for as a reverse 
acquisition. 

Highmark Marketing was incorporated subsequent to the year end, on April 2, 2014, as a subsidiary of 
Gorilla, for the purpose of participating in and completing the Arrangement. 
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HIGHMARK INTERNATIONAL MARKETING INC.  

(FORMERLY HIGHMARK MARKETING CORP.) 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR 
 THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 19, 2014 (INCORPORATION) 

TO MARCH 31, 2014 
  



INTRODUCTION 
 
The following Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of Highmark International Marketing Inc. 
(formerly Highmark Marketing Corp.) (the “Company”) has been prepared by management in accordance 
with the requirements of National Instrument 51-102 as of April 23, 2014.  This MD&A should be read 
in conjunction with the audited financial statements a s  a t  March 31, 2014 and the related notes 
contained therein which have been prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 
The information contained herein is not a substitute for detailed investigation or analysis on any particular 
issue. The information provided in this document is not intended to be a comprehensive review of all  
matters and developments concerning the Company.  
 
All financial information in this MD&A has been prepared in accordance with IFRS and all dollar 
amounts are quoted in Canadian dollars, the reporting and functional currency of the Company, unless 
specifically noted. 
 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
This MD&A contains certain forward-looking statements and information relating to the Company that 
are based on the beliefs of our management as well as assumptions made by and information currently 
available to us. When  used  in  this  document,  the  words  “anticipate”,  “believe”,  “estimate”,  “expect”  
and  similar expressions,  as  they  relate  to  our  company  or our  management,  are  intended  to  identify  
forward-looking statements. This  MD&A  contains  forward-looking  statements  relating  to, among  
other  things,  regulatory compliance, the sufficiency of current working capital, the estimated cost and 
availability of funding for the continued  exploration  and development  of our exploration  properties. 
Such  statements  reflect  the current views  of  management  with  respect  to  future  events  and  are  
subject  to  certain  risks,  uncertainties  and assumptions. Many factors could cause the actual results, 
performance or our achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or 
achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 
Background 
 
The Company was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on March 19, 
2014. The head office of the Company is Suite 800 - 1199 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British 
Columbia, V6E 3T5. The Company is currently engaged in the business of marketing and sales of 
health products in British Columbia, Canada. 
 
Significant events 
 
Incorporation – March 19, 2014 
 
Financing 
 
(i) On March 19, 2014, the Company issued 2,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.005 per 
common share for total proceeds of $10,000.  
 
(ii) On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 7,425,000 common shares at a price of $0.02 per 
common share for total proceeds of $148,500.  
 
During the period, the Company issued 9,425,000 common shares for total proceeds of $158,500 
which represent the entire shares issued and outstanding as of March 31. 
 
Subsequent to the year end, the Company completed the following private placements: 
 
(i)  On April 2, 2014 the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.05 per share 
for total proceeds of $50,000 
 
(ii) On April 16, 2014, the Company issued 1,600,000 common shares at a price of $0.10 per 
common share for total proceeds of $160,000.  

Subsequent events 
 
Plan of Arrangement 
 
On April 4, 2014, the Company entered into an Arrangement Agreement with Gorilla Minerals Corp. 
(“Gorilla”) and Highmark Marketing Inc.  Gorilla is a reporting issuer in the provinces of Alberta and 
British Columbia.   
 
The parties have agreed to reorganize their business by way of a plan of arrangement to be carried out 
under the provisions of the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia).  As a part of the 
Arrangement Agreement, the following transactions will take place: 
 

i) The Company shall acquire from Gorilla all of the issued and outstanding shares of 
Highmark Marketing Inc. for consideration of $10,000 consisting of a deposit of $2,000 
and the balance of $8,000 to be paid on closing; 

 
ii) The Company and Marketing Inc. will complete a one-for-one share exchange pursuant to 

which the Company will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Highmark Marketing Inc. 
 
Following completion of the Arrangement Agreement, Highmark Marketing Inc. will become a 
reporting issuer in Alberta and British Columbia. 
 



Since this transaction shall result in the shareholders of Highmark Acquisitions Ltd. owning a majority 
of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company, this transaction will be accounted for as a reverse 
acquisition. 
 
Completion of the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement is subject to the approval 
of the shareholders of the Company and the Supreme Court of British Columbia. 
 
Asset Purchase Agreement 
 
On March 30, 2014, the Company signed a letter of intent whereby the Company will enter into a 
transaction with RMDC Holdings Corp. in which RMDC will assign its rights to distribute and 
market the Vitapect product to Highmark in consideration of funding for additional marketing 
activities, and a transfer of existing inventory. 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 Period from  
March 19,2014 (date of 

incorporation) to March 31, 
2014 

Working capital $ 143,890 
Current assets $ 147,390 
Total liabilities $ 3,500 
Share capital and shares subscribed $ 158,500 
Deficit $ 14,610 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
For the period ended March 31, 2014, the Company incurred losses of $14,610, which resulted from 
legal costs and the accounting and audit of the Company’s financial statements. 
 
Summary of Quarterly Results 
 
Results for the most recent completed financial period are summarized in the table below:  
 
Table 3. Summary of periodic results 

 Period from  
March 19,2014 (date of 

incorporation) to March 
31, 2014 

Net Loss  $ 14,610 
Loss per Share $ 0.01 
Total Assets $ 147,390 
Working Capital $ 143,890 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
As at March 31, 2014, the assets of the Company were represented by $147,390 cash and receivables. 
 
The Company has to rely upon the sale of equity securities, primarily through private placements for 
cash, for general operating activities. All completed private placement arrangements are described in 
the Significant Events section above. 
 



The Company had accrued liabilities of $3,500 related to the accounting and audit of the financial 
statements. 
 
The Company has not pledged any of its assets as security for loans, or otherwise is not subject to 
any debt covenants.  Based on current information, the Company anticipates that its working capital 
is sufficient to meet its expected ongoing obligations for the coming year.  
 
Transactions with Related Parties 
 
During the period ended March 31, 2014, the Company did have transactions with related parties.  
The Company issued 2,000,000 shares at $0.005 per common share to directors and companies 
controlled by directors. On March 30, 2014, the Company signed a letter of intent whereby the 
Company will enter into a transaction with RMDC Holdings Corp. in which RMDC will assign its 
rights to distribute and market the Vitapect product to Highmark in consideration of funding for 
additional marketing activities, and a transfer of existing inventory.  David Taylor, our director, is a 
principal shareholder of RMDC. 
 
Outstanding Share Data 
 
On March 31, 2014 the Company had 9,425,000 shares of its common stock issued and outstanding. 
The Company did not issue any warrants or options to purchase its common stock. 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements. 
 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
All significant accounting policies adopted by the Company have been described in the notes to the 
audited financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2014. 
 
New accounting standards and interpretations 
 
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published; however, these are not 
mandatory for the March 31, 2014 reporting period. The management of the Company believes that 
these standards and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements.  
 
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  
 
The Company’s future growth and profitability will depend on the effectiveness and efficiency of 
advertising and promotional costs, including the Company’s ability to (i) create brand recognition for 
the Products; (ii) determine appropriate advertising strategies, messages and media; and (iii) maintain 
acceptable operating margins on such costs.  There can be no assurance that advertising and 
promotional costs will result in revenues for the Company’s business in the future, or will generate 
awareness of the Company’s technologies or services. In addition, no assurance can be given that the 
Company will be able to manage the Company’s advertising and promotional costs on a cost-effective 
basis.  

 

 

 



 

 

Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk 

The Company may become subject to liability for risks against which the Company cannot insure or 
against which the Company may elect not to insure due to the high cost of insurance premiums or 
other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds available for the Company’s 
usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which the Company does not carry insurance may 
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and operations.  

Conflicts of Interest Risk 

Certain of the Company’s directors and officers are, and may continue to be, involved in other 
business ventures in the technology industry through their direct and indirect participation in 
corporations, partnerships, joint ventures, etc. that may become potential competitors of the products 
the Company intends to provide. Situations may arise in connection with potential acquisitions or 
opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with or diverge from the 
Company’s interests.  In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material interest in any 
person who is a party to a material contract or a proposed material contract are required, subject to 
certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and generally abstain from voting on any resolution to 
approve the contract. In addition, the directors and the officers are required to act honestly and in 
good faith with a view to the Company’s best interests. However, in conflict of interest situations, the 
Company’s directors and officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to 
balance their competing interests with their duties to The Company. Circumstances (including with 
respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner that is 
unfavorable to us. 

Key Personnel Risk 

The Company’s success will depend on its directors and officers to develop the Company’s business 
and manage its operations, and on the Company’s ability to attract and retain key technical, sales and 
marketing staff or consultants once operations begin. The loss of any key person or the inability to 
find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business. 
Competition for qualified technical, sales and marketing staff, as well as officers and directors can be 
intense and no assurance can be provided that the Company will be able to attract or retain key 
personnel in the future, which may adversely impact the Company’s operations.  

Speculative Nature of Investment Risk 

An investment in the Company’s common shares carries a high degree of risk and should be 
considered as a speculative investment by purchasers. The Company has not paid dividends, and are 
unlikely to pay dividends in the immediate or near future. The Company is in the development and 
planning phases of its business and has not started commercialization of the Company’s products and 
services. The Company’s operations are not yet sufficiently established such it can mitigate the risks 
associated with its planned activities. 

No Established Market for Shares Risk 

There is currently no established trading market through which common shares in the Company’s 
authorized capital may be sold. Even if a trading market develops, there can be no assurance that such 
market will continue in the future.  As a result, investors in the Company may lose their entire 
investment.  



 

Liquidity and Future Financing Risk 

The Company may require additional financing to fund future operations and expansion plans. The 
Company needs to raise at least $1,000,000 further funds to carry out its business plan, but it does not 
yet have a commitment from anyone to invest the funds. The Company’s ability to secure any 
required financing to sustain its operations will depend in part upon prevailing capital market 
conditions, as well as the Company’s business success. There can be no assurance that The Company 
will be successful in the Company’s efforts to secure any additional financing or additional financing 
on terms satisfactory to the Company’s management. If additional financing is raised by issuing 
common shares in the Company’s authorized capital, control of the Company’s company may change 
and shareholders may suffer additional dilution. If adequate funds are not available, or are not 
available on acceptable terms, The Company may be required to scale back its business plan or cease 
operating. 

Going-Concern Risk 

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under which an 
entity is considered to be able to realize its assets and satisfy its liabilities in the ordinary course of 
business. The Company’s future operations are dependent upon the identification and successful 
completion of equity or debt financing and the achievement of profitable operations at an 
indeterminate time in the future. There can be no assurances that The Company will be successful in 
completing an equity or debt financing or in achieving profitability. The financial statements do not 
give effect to any adjustments relating to the carrying values and classification of assets and liabilities 
that would be necessary should The Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 

Global Economy Risk 

The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally made the 
raising of capital by equity or debt financing more difficult. The Company will be dependent upon the 
capital markets to raise additional financing in the future, while The Company establish a user base 
for the Products. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the ongoing global economic 
downturn. As such, The Company is subject to liquidity risks in meeting the Company’s development 
and future operating cost requirements in instances where cash positions are unable to be maintained 
or appropriate financing is unavailable. These factors may impact the Company’s ability to raise 
equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future and on terms favourable to the Company 
and its management. If uncertain market conditions persist, the Company’s ability to raise capital 
could be jeopardized, which could have an adverse impact on the Company’s operations and the 
trading price of the Company’s common shares on the Canadian Securities Exchange (the 
“Exchange”). 

Dividend Risk 

The Company has not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near 
future.  The Company expect to retain the Company’s earnings to finance further growth and, when 
appropriate, retire debt. 

 

 

 

 



 

Share Price Volatility Risk 

It is anticipated that the Company’s common shares will be listed for trading on the Exchange. As 
such, external factors outside of the Company’s control such as announcements of quarterly variations 
in operating results, revenues and costs, and sentiments toward technology sector stocks may have a 
significant impact on the market price of the Company’s common shares. Global stock markets, 
including the Exchange, have from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations 
that have often been unrelated to the operations of particular companies. The same applies to 
companies in the technology sector. There can be no assurance that an active or liquid market will 
develop or be sustained for the common shares. 

Increased Costs of Being a Publicly Traded Company 

As a company with publicly-traded securities, the Company will incur significant legal, accounting 
and filing fees not presently incurred. Securities legislation and the rules and policies of the Exchange 
require listed companies to, among other things, adopt corporate governance and related practices, 
and to continuously prepare and disclose material information, all of which will significantly increase 
the Company’s legal and financial compliance costs. 

Financial Instruments 
 
Fair value 
 
Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into one of three levels in the fair value 
hierarchy according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values.   The three 
levels of the fair value hierarchy are: 
  
Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
 
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly; and 
 
Level 3 – Inputs that are not based on observable market data. 
 
The fair value of cash is measured based on level 1 inputs of the fair value hierarchy. 
 
The estimated fair value of financial liabilities is equal to their carrying values due to the short-term 
nature of these instruments. 
 
Capital Management 
 
The Company defines its capital as shareholders’ equity. The Company’s objectives when managing 
capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to pursue the 
development of its technologies and to maintain a flexible capital structure for its projects for the 
benefit of its stakeholders. As the Company is in the development stage, its principal source of funds 
is from the issuance of common shares.     
 
The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may attempt to issue new shares, acquire or dispose of assets or 
adjust the amount of cash. 



 
 
The Company expects its capital resources, which include a share offering, will be sufficient to carry 
its research and development plans and operations through its current operating period. 
The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 
 
The Company is exposed to varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks: 
 

1) Fair value 
 
The carrying value of cash amounts, and accrued liabilities approximated their fair value 
because of the relatively short-term nature of these instruments.   
 
2) Credit risk 
 
The Company’s cash is largely held in large Canadian financial institutions.  The Company 
maintains cash deposits with Schedule A financial institutions, which from time to time may 
exceed federally insured limits.  The Company has not experienced any significant credit 
losses and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 
 
3) Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  Financial assets and liabilities with 
variable interest rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.  The Company 
does not hold any financial liabilities with variable interest rates.  The Company does 
maintain bank accounts which earn interest at variable rates but it does not believe it is 
currently subject to any significant interest rate risk. 
 
4) Liquidity risk 
 
The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on management’s ability 
to raise required funding through future equity issuances and through short-term borrowing.  
The Company manages its liquidity risk by forecasting cash flows from operations and 
anticipating any investing and financing activities.  Management and the Board of Directors 
are actively involved in the review, planning and approval of significant expenditures and 
commitments. 

 
CONTINGENCIES 
 
There are no contingent liabilities. 
 
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 
 
As of the date of this report, April 23, 2014, the Company’s directors and officers are following:  
 
David Taylor – Director 
Marc Branson - Director 
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SCHEDULE “C” 

CERTIFICATE OF HIGHMARK MARKETING INC. 

 

The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to 
Highmark Marketing Inc. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to 
state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that 
is made from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia 
this 9th day of May, 2014. 

 

“Marc Branson”___________________  “Tak Tsan Tso”_____________________ 
Marc Branson      Tak Tsan Tso (aka Simon Tso) 
Director, Chief Executive Officer, President  Chief Financial Officer 

 

“David Taylor_____________________  “Peter Schriber”____________________ 
David Taylor      Peter Schriber 
Director       Director 
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